Public Document Pack

West
Northamptonshire
Council

Adult Social Care and Health Overview
and Scrutiny Committee

A meeting of the Adult Social Care & Health Overview & Scrutiny
Committee will be held in the Jeffrey room, the Guildhall, St Giles Street,
Northampton, NN1 1DE on Thursday 14 September 2023 at 6.00 pm

Agenda

Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitute Members

2. Declarations of Interest

Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which they
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.

3. Minutes (Pages 5 - 12)

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 27 June 2023.

4, Chair's Announcements

To receive communications from the Chair.

Step-up and step-down community transformation (Pages 13 - 22)

The committee to receive a presentation on transformation progress from the Chief
Executive and Chief Operating Officer of the NHS Northamptonshire Integrated Care
Board.

Performance against adult care, public health, and wellbeing key performance
indicators (Pages 23 - 26)

The committee to receive a presentation on Performance Measures from the
Executive Director of People Services.

Page 1

West Northamptonshire Council
www.westnorthants.gov.uk




7. CQC Outcomes and update from Quality & Contacts team on care homes
(Pages 27 - 46)

The committee to receive a presentation from the Executive Director of People
Services and Assistant Director for Commissioning & Partnerships.

8. Update on recruitment of Coordinators to the Local Area Partnerships (LAPs)
The committee to receive a verbal update from the Executive Director of People
Services.

9. Report from the former People Overview and Scrutiny Committee Review of
Integrated Care across Northamptonshire (iCAN) (Pages 47 - 84)

To consider and approve the final report from the scrutiny review.

10. | Proposal for a task and finish group on Unpaid Carers and how WNC supports
carers and assist with development of Carers Strategy (Pages 85 - 88)

11. | Review of Committee Work Programme (Pages 89 - 92)

To review and approve the Committee Work Programme for 2023/24.

12. | Urgent Business
The Chair to advise whether they have agreed to any items of urgent business being
admitted to the agenda.

13. | Exclusion of Press and Public
Exempt Items In respect of the following items the Chair may move the resolution set
out below, on the grounds that if the public were present it would be likely that exempt
information (information regarded as private for the purposes of the Local
Government Act 1972) would be disclosed to them: The Committee is requested to
resolve: “That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of business on the grounds that if
the public were present it would be likely that exempt information under Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Act of the descriptions against each item would be disclosed to
them”

Catherine Whitehead

Proper Officer

6 September 2023

Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members:

Page 2




Councillor Rosie Herring (Chair) Councillor Nick Sturges-Alex (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Rufia Ashraf Councillor Phil Bignell
Councillor Raymond Connolly Councillor Julie Davenport
Councillor Greg Lunn Councillor Wendy Randall
Councillor Emma Roberts Councillor Anna King

Councillor Brian Sargeant

Information about this Agenda

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence and the appointment of substitute Members should be notified to
democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk prior to the start of the meeting.

Declarations of Interest
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the start
of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item

Local Government and Finance Act 1992 - Budget Setting, Contracts &
Supplementary Estimates

Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax
must declare that fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax.

Evacuation Procedure

If a continuous fire alarm sounds you must evacuate the building via the nearest available
fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the assembly area as directed by
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.

Access to Meetings

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as
possible before the meeting.

Mobile Phones
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off.

Queries Regarding this Agenda Page 3


mailto:democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk

If you have any queries about this agenda, please contact James Edmunds / Maisie
Mclnnes, Democratic Services via the following:

Tel: 07500 605276 / 07391411365
Email: democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk

Or by writing to:

West Northamptonshire Council
One Angel Square

Angel Street

Northampton

NN1 1ED

Page 4



Agenda Item 3

West
Northamptonshire
Council

Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of a meeting of the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held at Council Chamber, The Forum, Towcester, NN12 6AD on Tuesday
27 June 2023 at 6.00 pm.

Present:

Councillor Rosie Herring (Chair)
Councillor Nick Sturges-Alex (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Phil Bignell

Councillor Raymond Connolly

Councillor Wendy Randall

Councillor Emma Roberts

Substitute Members:
Councillor Brian Sargeant as substitute for Councillor Daniel Cribbin

Also Present:
Councillor Matt Golby, Portfolio Holder for Adult Care, Wellbeing and Health
Councillor Paul Clark

Apologies for Absence:

Councillor Rufia Ashraf

Councillor Karen Cooper

Councillor Daniel Cribbin

Councillor Julie Davenport

Stuart Lackenby, Executive Director People Services

Officers:

Ashley Leduc, Assistant Director for Commissioning & Partnerships
Neil Cox, Assistant Director for Safeguarding & Wellbeing Services
James Edmunds, Assistant Manager Democratic Services

Maisie Mclnnes, Democratic Services Officer

Declarations of Interest

Councillor Roberts declared an ongoing interest as:

e Chair of Food Aid Far Cotton

e A board member of Food Aid Alliance West

e A board member for the Community Training Partnership contract to be
delivered by the Community Law Service.

Chair's Announcements
The Chair welcomed everyone to the inaugural meeting of the Adult Social Care and

Health Overview and Scrutiny committee. The Chair shared that she recently
attended the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny annual conference at the King's

Page 5



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 27 June 2023

Fund on 14 June 2023 and found it to be an insightful and enjoyable experience
learning about scrutiny in the sector, building public trust and the challenges facing
local services.

Minutes from People Overview & Scrutiny Committee

RESOLVED: That the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee agreed the final minutes of the former People Overview and Scrutiny
Committee of the meeting on 3 May 2023 as an accurate record.

Integrated Care Across Northamptonshire (iCAN)

The Chair invited the Assistant Director Commissioning and Performance to deliver
the presentation on iCAN “The Story So Far December 2022”. The Assistant Director
summarised that iCAN started in 2021 as a transformation programme across
Northamptonshire with the aims to reduce bed days in hospitals, to reduce
unnecessary hospital admissions and provide holistic care to older members of the
community to maximise independent living.

Members heard the presentation from the Assistant Director Commissioning and
Partnerships and following a group discussion the following points were raised:

= A blend of clinical and reablement support was needed to support people
leaving acute hospital settings and an equipment store had been created as
the iCAN programme found this was one of the challenges preventing hospital
discharges.

= Complex discharge pathway 1 had been redesigned as officers looked at how
healthcare services were being delivered and changed shift patterns to create
additional capacity, this led to 50% of discharges being processed through
pathway 1.

= There were some challenges around pathway 1 in respect of staff loss and
recruitment issues so there is not a full complement in reablement staff, but
this has been mitigated by the Council engaging with an independent care
provider and a contract will be in place by September to ensure staff cover in
this area.

= Digital work was still ongoing, but the vision was for a central dashboard which
all partners have access to, to be able to scrutinise and challenge to
demonstrate patient matters and system matters.

= There has been an improvement in the deficit in home care staffing in the last
12 months, capacity has increased, and this has helped people being able to
move back home and out of hospital.

» Productivity in acute settings had increased with discharge hubs making
decisions quicker with detailed patient requirements to enable more effective
decision making, coupled with the availability of more equipment and social
care support to allow people to remain at home.

» Programmes were in place to lower the number of older residents needing
hospital care under local area partnerships and improvements were now under
the business as usual activity and Age Well programme as the iCAN
programme had concluded.

Page 6



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 27 June 2023

» Prevention was needed to look at how people could be better supported before
admission into acute service, how community volunteers could support with
daily activities, and a rapid response service that prevents the use of
ambulance service.

* In terms of budget, £270k had been funded by business rates and £8m had
been funded by the Integrated Care Board (ICB) for the iCAN programme.
Funding for this programme had ceased, but ICB were now able to fund other
programmes making a difference, and preventing hospital stays and promoting
independence.

Members asked a question surrounding the impact of the iCAN programme and if
there had been an increase of incidences and admission rates as a result of the
approach to reduce bed stays. Members wanted information to demonstrate if getting
residents home early was impacting on readmissions, serious injuries or risk. This
would provide reassurance to scrutiny to ensure they have not increased risk for
those being discharged.

The Assistant Director Commissioning and Performance gave assurance to
members and explained that there was greater community resilience as a result of
the programme and a reduction in the number of bed days. In terms of serious
incidences, the Assistant Director said he would share the data outside of the
meeting.

Members praised the success of the programme in the acute sector and asked how
the Council planned to tackle the community sector. The Assistant Director
Commissioning and Performance proposed that the Age Well Programme had a
focus on the community sector, and this could be brought to a future meeting to
update members on the current work if members would find this useful. Members
discussed a future presentation on the Age Well Programme.

Councillor Roberts, as the Chair of the iCAN Scrutiny Panel, expressed that there
could be no doubt that changes had been made across the contact service and how
residents accessed the service as demonstrated in the work of the task and finish
panel. The panel saw examples of positive actions delivered under the iCAN
programme but was ultimately not able to reach a clear conclusion about the overall
value added by the programme in return for resources invested in it by WNC,
including the cost of employing an external system transformation partner. She
concluded that the iCAN report would be brought to the next meeting of the Adult
Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny meeting with the cost figure to finalise
the report. She thanked the Assistant Manager Democratic Services for his hard work
working alongside her on the iCAN task and finish group.

The Chair of the iCAN Scrutiny Panel alluded to the presentation and report which
suggested there had been an improvement in care staff and asked if nursing staff
was still an issue as raised at Cabinet. She asked a supplementary question
surrounding concern for care homes rated as inadequate. The Assistant Director
Commissioning and Performance responded the issue was with the type of staffing
as the challenge was with nursing staff and the provision of nursing care as there
was a lack of staff in this area and those available were costing a premium due to the
market need. This was being addressed with the ICB as there were quality concerns
that the council had a focussed eye on. In regard to care homes there were several

Page 7



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 27 June 2023

nursing homes that had started to become a concern and the council were providing
intensive support to these and were looking to address provision for winter months to
boost capacity and level of care being provided in care homes.

The Chair thanked the Assistant Director Commissioning and Performance for his
comprehensive presentation on iCAN. The Assistant Manager Democratic Services
summarised that an agenda item on the Age Well programme could be brought to a
future meeting which could encompass a segment on care for frail and elderly
residents and the Local Area Partnerships (LAPs) and the outcomes sought and
means to achieve them as part of the programme.

RESOLVED: That the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee:

(1) Noted the presentation on the future direction of iCAN from the Assistant
Director Commissioning and Performance with the Age Well Programme to be
presented at a future meeting

(2) Noted the update from the Task and Finish Panel formed to scrutinise
progress with the iCAN programme and the draft report would be brought to
the next meeting of the Committee.

CQC Inspection of Adult Social Care - Preparation

The Chair introduced the agenda item and shared that at the pre-meet the Executive
Director of People Services requested that the preparatory Adult Social Care Self-
Assessment that would form as part of the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
Inspection of Adult Care could come to scrutiny and the Committee could act as a
critical friend and ask inquisitive questions and areas for improvement before the
formal inspection.

The Chair invited the Assistant Director Safeguarding and Wellbeing Services to
deliver the presentation on CQC Single Assessment Framework: Local Authority
Assurance. The Assistant Director Safeguarding and Wellbeing Services explained
the background to the CQC Inspection and shared that the Health and Care Act 2022
gave new regulatory powers to the CQC to undertake an independent assessment of
care functions delivered by local authorities.

The Portfolio Holder for Adult Care, Wellbeing and Health integration commended the
Assistant Director Safeguarding and Wellbeing Services as the Self-Assessment
document that he has produced has been held up regionally as an excellent
exemplar of work. The Portfolio Holder also shared he had recently attended a Local
Government Association (LGA) course with fellow Cabinet members which
addressed the CQC inspection and one of the key aspects of the inspection is how
local people were experiencing Adult Social Care, with the service users at the core
of the work and how their experience linked with the provision of care offer.

Members discussed the CQC inspection and felt that the self-assessment
demonstrated the challenges in place and how the Council had evaluated its work.
Members suggested that the reporting could include more on diversity, referencing
the socio-economic impacts and challenges in West Northamptonshire and

Page 8



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 27 June 2023

signposted to the Council’s Anti-Poverty Strategy which detailed that the authority
included areas of high deprivation in Northampton experiencing different levels of
care and the highest proportion was safeguarding needs.

Members asked a question regarding the timescales for residents to access care
services. The Assistant Director Safeguarding and Wellbeing Services responded
that the timescale was dependent on the level of support required and urgency as
there were various steps in place. Those with genuine need would be responded to
within hours to prioritise their safety. Where a person had a support package then the
aim would be to have support plans in place within 28 days. Members echoed the
concern regarding response times and the pressure on access to services, for
example in relation to Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS).

RESOLVED: That comments by the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and
Scrutiny Committee be taken into account during further development of West
Northamptonshire Council’s self-assessment for the CQC inspection.

People Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2022/23

The Chair introduced the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report
for 2022/23 and explained the report contained the breadth of work taken by the
Committee over the last year and would go to full council at the next meeting in
September 2023.

Members discussed the report and raised that scrutiny would like the debt and
money advice service to come back to the Committee for an update. Members felt
the report suggested scrutiny was wholly in agreement with the proposed approach
that had been presented, but members were concerned what the remodel would look
like, and further work still needed to be done. The Assistant Manager Democratic
Services suggested revised wording to reflect this.

RESOLVED: That the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee approved the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report
2022/23, subject to the amendment of the section on scrutiny of the debt and money
advice service to read that the Committee supported the proposed hybrid model as
its preference from the options presented to it but requested the opportunity to
scrutinise detailed proposals before they were agreed.

Draft Committee Work Programme 2023/24

At the Chair’s invitation, the Assistant Manager Democratic Services introduced the
Draft Committee Work Programme 2023/24 and invited the Committee to consider
and agree its work programme and consider working methods and what information
scrutiny wished to review. He explained that section 5.2 and 5.3 of the report detailed
the key principles of Overview and Scrutiny and the development of scrutiny work
programmes. He highlighted Appendix A which was the former work programme for
the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee which had been divided between the
Adult Social Care and Health, the Children, Education and Housing and the Place
Overview and Scrutiny Committees according to their remits. Appendix B was the

Page 9



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 27 June 2023

draft Committee work programme which consisted of items carried over from the
former People Overview and Scrutiny Committee and suggestions from the Adult
Social Care and Health premeeting which took place in May.

The Assistant Manager Democratic Services clarified that the premeet was an
opportunity for members to engage in discussion about upcoming scrutiny work, but
the Committee formally decided and agreed its work programme and would decide
on areas for review and items to add, remove and modify from the work programme.

Members discussed the work programme and suggested the Committee could
engage with Healthwatch and pick up issues arising from their annual report.
Members suggested the Assistant Director Commissioning and Partnerships could
attend the next premeet to give scrutiny assurance on the Age Well programme and
future work. The Assistant Director Commissioning and Partnerships shared that he
would be happy to share a report outside of the meeting for members to review in
readiness for a discussion at the premeet and members could decide on their
approach to scrutiny and any further information they required for the Committee
meeting.

Members suggested that the Adult Social Care directorate dashboards could
regularly be brought to scrutiny on a quarterly basis so that members could review
the team's KPIs and metrics to inform any topics for scrutiny to review performance.
In addition, members suggested a regular review on the Local Area Partnerships
(LAPs) work and their successes and challenges and any changes in the sector or
upcoming work could be communicated by the Portfolio Holder for Adult Care,
Wellbeing and Health Integration and the Executive Director for People at the
premeets.

Members suggested that the provision of blue badges be removed from the work
programme as any specific issues could be pursued by ward councillors in the first
instance.

RESOLVED: That the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee:
a) Agreed the draft work programme subject to the following amendments:
e The Committee to carry out regular scrutiny of the development of Local Area
Partnerships and the outcomes being delivered
¢ The Committee to request to receive information about performance against
relevant Key Performance Indicators to inform scrutiny
e The Committee to consider the topic of care quality in care homes
e The Committee to consider the topic of support for independent living by
older people following on from the original iCAN programme
e Proposed items on the provision of blue badges and support for people living
with dementia be removed from the work programme.
b) Agreed that a briefing session for Committee members giving an overview of
the services within the Committee’s remit be organised.

Page 10



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 27 June 2023

Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

The meeting closed at 19:55

Chair:

Date:

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Care
Northamptonshire

Step-up and step-
down community
transformation

Pathway 2 Provision

(recovery, rehabilitation, assessment, care planning or short-
term intensive support in a 24-hour non acute bed-based

setting)
>
Q
®
2
-
) | >
«Q —
® ®
- 3
w Ul



Our shared challenge Integrated Care

Northamptonshire

* Our shared goal is Keeping People Well through the provision of
Right Support at the Right Time in the Right Place. These all build on
the successful transformation within Northamptonshire achieved to
date.

a * Despite our strong progress, on average 100
people over 65 will be admitted to hospital

each day where the admission wasn’t planned.

* 4 or 5 of those admitted will require a
community bed as the next step in their
recovery (a Pathway Two care episode)

T
QD
«Q
D
=
~




Integrated
Northamptonshire

Resolving our shared challenge

 Patients identified as needing a Pathway Two bed (stepping up into It
or stepping down) were often waiting for the right bed to be available
for them resulting in high numbers of patients not being in the right
place.

* Yet across Northamptonshire we had empty beds because they
were not the right beds. Often, we were full in our old estate and
only partially full in our modern estate

* This meant people spent longer in hospital than they needed to.

* The longer a patient remains in the wrong setting the greater the
likelihood of decompensation, loss of skills, confidence and risk of
reinfection arising compounding our demand pressures

GT abed



Current P2 Bed Position Integrated Care

Northamptonshire

THACKLEY GREEN (51) --... Corby Community

..... Hospital (22)

HEENE

... SPINNEYFIELDS (51)

Oundle
[ ]

®
curby

Danetre (29) Hazelwood(32)

Kettering

. Rusbk-ien
Wellingborough gas

Health x 76

Northarhpton Beechwood (15)

EEEEE Social x 35

HEEEE g
Towcester B S BEEEEE Palliativex 6

| Stroke x 15

Health Surge Unstaffed x 17

IIII*

Brackley (16)

Social Care Unstaffed x 67

mm
] * RIBU: Recovery | 267 beds |

Independence Bed Units



Integrated Care
iyt Northamptonshire
Assistive ‘ '

Technology to

maintain my

Proactive remote monitoring and
independence

reassurance that support is
quickly available if | need it

=
Personalised ‘ e |-
Equipment to help me

self manage my health
Befriending if | B
want this

My personal e
holistic plan Backed up with timely
shared with access to recovery
who | choose specialists as my needs
Access to range of local Free Wifi & and reviewed change (RIB.U' Integrated
) = larlv with community teams)
community activities digital regularly
and support groups (in platforms me.
person or virtual) ‘ & Life
. Stores App
Breathing Space
Memory Hub My go to named
Get up and Go Classes person from my
Heart Group local integrated
Singing for Breathing / team !
U Dementia Choir
B
HEEEPE
Hepe

A MAAN WA

.zz “ EP




The success from Turn Furlong shows the
benefits achieved from an integrated Health and

Social Care approach

Turn Furlong

Jan-23 Feb-23 | Mar-23 | Apr-23 | May-23 | Jun-23 Jul-23
Average Length of Stay
(ALOS) 48.5 39.7 44.7 33.3 50.1 36.9 44.5
Baseline 65 65 65 65 65 65 65

Jan-23 Feb-23 | Mar-23 | Apr-23 | May-23 | Jun-23 Jul-23
Admissions 30 35 31 33 28 29 34
Baseline 15 14 15 15 15 15 15
Variance 15 21 16 18 13 14 19

40
35

o U1 o uu o wun

gT abed

Jan-23

Admission Performance

Feb-23

Mar-23

Apr-23

May-23

B Admissions B Baseline

30
2
2
1

Jun-23 Jul-23

Integrated Care
Northamptonshire

Turn Furlong ALoS Trend

70

60

50

40
30
20

10

Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23

ALOS Baseline

------ Linear (ALOS)

Average Length of Stay continuing to trend
downwards and significantly lower than

baseline which, with all 51 beds available has
enabled an additional 115 persons to be
supported in the last six months




| ' Integrated Care
Our shared transformation in 2022/2023 egrated Care

* Through the Integrated Care Across Northamptonshire (ICAN)
programme partners came together to address challenges and
designed and implemented a number of solutions:

- Increased board and ward
rounds within P2 beds to
support onward care

Improved
processes within
Acute Hospital

o ? %e2 Integrated staffing model

-e Discharge Hubs
C'.b coordinating care Irmm between social care & NHFT

Increased Improved access to equipment
weekend transfers ) to remove discharge delays




Transformation 2023/2024 Integrated Care

Northamptonshire

 Turn Furlong joint model continues

* Thackley Green SCC transferred to North Northamptonshire Councill
and now implementing an integrated social care and health delivery
model

* The improved flow has reduced the need for surge capacity at
Kettering General Hospital

» Performance has significantly improved

* Feedback has been positive and featured in recent BBC Radio
Northampton focus piece

g Preparation continues for winter 23/24 and beyond

N
o




Integrated Care

Next Steps Northamptonshire

* We will continue to engage with all our stakeholders to agree
solutions for the next steps in our journey.

« Our immediate priorities are to :

1. Utilise the best of our 3. Deliver care together that reduces 5 Use the | :
combined estate The time people spend in hospital - US€ the learning

from Turn Furlong &
Thackley Green to

?
- .“._. create a health and
g » care workforce and
plan
B 4. Review our provision across

2. Develop our clinical model Northamptonshire to ensure we have
Ror complex dementia in P2 the right beds in the right place




Conclusion Integrated C:

Northamptonshire

* Our Pathway 2 solutions have been developed and delivered
together, in response to the vision set out by North and West
Northamptonshire Councils through Better Care Fund submissions &
the ICP Strategy and ICB Plan

* As we continue to innovate, we will develop a business case for our
future model

* Areas for discussion

« We would like to make the best use of our joint estate by delivering services
together where we can

« We would like to do more to develop our community beds to ensure we have
the right beds in the right place

« How should we build on today’s conversation with you moving forward?

Z22 abed



West
Northamptonshire
Council

Performance Measures —
2023-24

Adult Social Care & Public Health

Last Updated: 61" Sept 2023

¢¢ obed




Northamptonshire 2023-24 Performance Measures - Proposed Changes Priority 2

National Context

» There have been changes implemented by government departments in the past 12 months which impact a number of regulatory/ inspection
regimes.

« These will change how we are inspected as well as create changes in data collection frameworks.
« In some cases these have entirely changed some of the national metrics that are collected and that local Authorities will report against.

» The new Office for Local Government and Best Value Guidance (Oflog) have published and will continue to develop a Data Explorer that will put
local government information in a single place.

Local Approach
* Changes already been made to how and what data is collated to order to ensure we comply with national requirements.

* By providing greater detail of metrics around our adult social care and public health services (as well as other areas in the council) we will be in a
position of being able to highlight those areas where we are strong but at the same time provide greater transparency by showing those areas

that we have already identified require attention and importantly that we can demonstrate there is a robust plan to address any required
Improvements.

Consultation

* The changes to the performance measures followed a review undertaken in consultation with the members of Cabinet and ELT
» Provides scrutiny with an opportunity feed into and influence proposed changes.

Y
Q
—



West
MNorthamptonshire

2023-24 Performance Measures - Proposed Changes Priority 2

Improved Life Chances Metrics
Adult Social Care

Older people (65+) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital
Remove - People using social care who receive self-directed support

Remove - People that return to their normal place of residence of discharge
Remove - New requests for services where route of access was discharge

Remove - from hospital that had a reablement service (SALT)

Add - Admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100k (aged 18-64)
Add - Admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100k (aged 65+)

Add — Conversation 1 Assessments that have no sequel of service after [x] months
Add - Care Act Assessments completed

Add — Carers assessments completed

Add — % of concluded safeguarding enquiries where (MSP) questions were asked and
outcomes were expressed and the desired outcomes fully or partially achieved

Add — Care Act reviews completed in past 12 months

Improved Life Chances — Proposed Amendments
Public Health

Y
Q
—

* Smoking quit rate at 4 weeks

» Mothers known to be smokers at the time of delivery

« Infants due a new birth visit that received a new birth visit within 14 days of birth & 6-8 week

review

* Remove - Covid Booster take-up

« Remove - Breastfeeding rate at 6-8 weeks

» Remove - Number of school aged children who receive weight management advice and support 1:1

» Add - % of in-year eligible population who received an NHS Health Check

» Add - % of successful completions of adult drug treatment - opiate users

* Add - % of successful completions of adult alcohol treatment

« Add - % of people whose frailty has either not increased or has reduced

* Add - % of CYP who showed a maintained or improved CORE-YP score on completion of care (CYP
Mental Health)

» Add - People with improvement on wellbeing score (WEMWABS) at 6 months

« Add - % of people in Weight Management service losing 5% weight

« Add - Rate of emergency department attendances for falls in those aged 65+




This page is intentionally left blank



West
Northamptonshire
Council

o
QD
«Q
(9]
N
~




Cy===m Current Carer Support Provider Model

* Northamptonshire Carers are the provider

* Contracted on behalf of WNC by NNC

* Two year contract from 1st October 2022

* The Service has delegated authority to undertake the Council’s statutory duties
for Carers as described in The Care Act 2014

* Includes carer assessments, quality of life improvements, respite, crisis support,
wellbeing, information and training

 Some issues around low numbers of Direct Payments being looked into

* The KPI report (Jan-Mar 2023) didn’t have any review data.

* Oct-Dec 22 — review column also empty — asked provider to complete

* Blanks: It is not clear if people refuse an assessment, or they just aren’t
informed, so commissioners requested that a refusal is recorded

e Quality of life tool currently used locally developed. Evidence based needed.

* The provider’s website did not state that it is a commissioned service

8¢ obed



ents
Supporting docum

:verst:‘amptonshire
o]

Govemment
CD uncil

Assotiation

/i e’assessmenrs for ajj Coy ils undefway

- phased approach With focyg On deyegy, Qthe ssurance
approach, garhering SViden ca expion’ng refat performanc

gu \ 0 ca t by coyp Cils, ang buifding reialionships_

CQc wilf underrake S0me rhemed reporﬁng at Nation 4 levgy

dunng the first SiX my S, with the fogyg from Apri| ~Sept2023

on th Mes of Cara prow‘sion, in tegration v ang
Pl

Formai assessments of gJy
‘One Worg fatingg __
2023

in
. cel have thajr basgy, € ags, 3
_ g h rt 1 gu\dan ode\ n benchm NG coyp S aga, tatemey
eSs\“ \nte\’\ ur m iden Olfec; on by y xper:em:e
ASS und e this ut;‘lismg Categorios f evi b Priate. q ing o Which Quality
ties pdat e de Slatemg, being sess,
du u g as W . Peopjag rigy  requjray idence g, il g ty ents wp
p h ‘de\’ aSsesgip S, and jg Weighy, a5 highy, as off f ce
will ex smen * con Sideyj NCas of Unpajq Carerg likely h SQuitapye acces,
- \We with sSes eXperig, Mes from car,
Ote' ation ng . Xamip, h Is encourage ablg dact gn fey Ck from Npaig Cargrg who
“abo\' 0 0\'\9 drayy an Pport i Clugip, from Peopja Who fa e communicatfon barriers, ang how they
cO! ns“-\on Work With g S equgy Partngrs to improve Carer suppon, Selvjcag ang experience.
{ra
3
202
ruary
Feb

-

&
D
0




People at the Heart of Care: aduit

OOOOO

social care reform’ policy paper

| know where to find user-friendly information and advice that is inclusive of my

communication and accessibility needs to make informed and empowered

decisions about my life — now and in the future.

* | know what my rights are and can get information and advice on all the options
for my health, care and housing.

* | understand the support that is available to me in my area to maintain my own
health and wellbeing and achieve the outcomes that matter to me.

* | am provided with tailored information and advice to support the person | care
for.

* CQC have their own ‘I’ statements taken from TLAP Making it Real (2018)

* Form part of the Peoples’ Experience section of evidence

CQC will use it’s six categories of evidence

o€ abed
°




. CareQuality
Commission

People’s experiences

Feedback from council staff and leaders
Feedback from partners

Observation (N/A to councils)

Processes

. Outcomes

O UhAWLNE

|



. CareQuality
Commission

* Unpaid carer data

* People’s experience of care, how councils learn from
it, and respond to it

* Knowing what ‘good’ looks like

* Co-production

* Equity

e Safe and effective processes

|



West
Northamptonshire Care Act 2014: Carer Statutory Duties Self-Assessment
Council

The Care Act sections that relate to carers are in the yellow bars

The blue areas are for guidance and clarity and do not need completing

The white areas are the sections that need populating with evidence

Rag-rate each response for a quick view of areas that need to be part of an action plan for
improvement

Evidence could be collected from strategies, service specifications, policy, case notes or
individuals/groups that can give examples from practice.

Created by Michael Hurt: June 2023 Latest version of the tool:

Q-?Care Act 2014 accessed June 2023

cg ab

Right-click and select clear contents to reset these boxes



West

Northamptonshire
Start Date of Assessment: Responsible Officer for Assessment: Tool 1..fersiur1:|:| Council
(Care Act section Evidence Gained (Source and sample size where applicable ) Name ‘ Date | Rate |

|2 Preventing needs for care and support

(1) A local authority must provide or arrange for the provision of services, facilities or resources, or take other steps, which it considers
will—

(b) contribute towards preventing or delaying the development by carers in its area of needs for support;

(d) reduce the needs for support of carers in its area

|2) In performing that duty, a local authority must have regard to—

(a) the importance of identifying services, facilities and resources already available in the authority's area and the extent to which the
authority could involve or make use of them in performing that duty;

(c) the importance of identifying carers in the authority's area with needs for support which are not being met (by the authority or
otherwise).

3 Promoting integration of care and support with health services etc
1) A local authority must exercise its functions under this Part with a view to ensuring the integration of care and support provision
with health provision and health-related provision where it considers that this would—

'(a} promote the well-being of adults in its area with needs for care and support and the well-being of carers in its area,

(b) contribute to the prevention or delay of the development by adults in its area of needs for care and support or the development
by carers in its area of needs for support, or

(c) improve the quality of care and support for adults, and of support for carers, provided in its area (including the outcomes that are
achieved from such provision).

'{2} “Care and support provision” means—

(b) provision to meet carers' needs for support, and

\(c] provision of services, facilities or resources, or the taking of other steps, under section 2.

4 Providing information and advice

(1) A local authority must establish and maintain a service for providing people in its area with information and advice relating to care
{2) The service must provide information and advice on the following matters in particular—

'qa} the systeqn provided for by this Part and how the system operates in the authority's area,

(b) the chie of types of care and support, and the choice of providers, available to those who are in the authority's area,

(c) how to@cess the care and support that is available,

(d) how to(ﬂecess independent financial advice on matters relevant to the meeting of needs for care and support, and
(e) how to raise concerns about the safety or well-being of an adult who has needs for care and support.

(2) In providing information and advice under this section, a local authority must in particular—

(a) have regard to the importance of identifying adults in the authority's area who would be likely to benefit from financial advice on




West

Northamptonshire
Start Date ofAssessment:l:l Responsible Officer for Assessment: Tool version:l:l Council pt
Care Act section Evidence Gained (Source and sample size where applicable ) Name ‘ Date ‘ Rate ‘
7 Co-operating in specific cases
(1) Where a local authority requests the co-operation of a relevant partner, or of a local authority which is not one of its relevant
partners, in the exercise of a function under this Part in the case of an individual with needs for care and support or in the case of a Amber

carer, a carer of a child or a young carer, the partner or authority must comply with the request unless it considers that doing so—

(a) would be incompatible with its own duties, or
(b) would otherwise have an adverse effect on the exercise of its functions.

(2) Where a relevant partner of a local authority, or a local authority which is not one of its relevant partners, requests the co-
operation of the local authority in its exercise of a function in the case of an individual with needs for care and support or in the case
of a carer, a carer of a child or a young carer, the local authority must comply with the request unless it considers that doing so—

(a) would be incompatible with its own duties, or
(b) would otherwise have an adverse effect on the exercise of its functions.

(3) A person who decides not to comply with a request under subsection (1) or (2) must give the person who made the request written
reasons for the decision.

10 Assessment of a carer's needs for support
(1) Where it appears to a local authority that a carer may have needs for support (whether currently or in the future), the authority
must assess—

(a) whether the carer does have needs for support (or is likely to do so in the future), and

Amber

(b) if the carer does, what those needs are (or are likely to be in the future).

i

(2) An assessment under subsection (1) is referred to in this Part as a “carer's assessment”.

(3) “Carer” means an adult who provides or intends to provide care for another adult (an “adult needing care”); but see subsections (9)
and (10).

(4) The duty to carry out a carer's assessment applies regardless of the authority's view of—

(a) the level of the carer's needs for support, or

(b} the level of the carer's financial resources or of those of the adult needing care.

(5) A carer's assessment must include an assessment of—

(a) whether the carer is able, and is likely to continue to be able, to provide care for the adult needing care,

(b) whether the carer is willing, and is likely to continue to be willing, to do so,

(c) the impn‘f’ofthe carer's needs for support on the matters specified in section 1(2),
Section 1(
(2)"Well-bedng", in relation to an individual, means that individual's well-being so far as relating to any of the following—

(a) personaﬁi}gniw {including treatment of the individual with respect);

(b}physical and mental health and emotional well-being;

(c) protection from abuse and neglect;




=

West

LT S T R L]

(e) specify circumstances in which, if an assessment under this Part is combined with an assessment under this Part that relates to
another person, each person may or must be represented and supported by the same independent advocate or by different
348 independent advocates;

Northamptonshire
Start Date ofAssessment:: Responsible Officer for Assessment: Tool version:l:l Council
Care Act section Evidence Gained (Source and sample size where applicable ) Name Date Rate

(f) provide that an independent advocate may, in such circumstances or subject to such conditions as may be specified, examine and
349 take copies of relevant records relating to the individual.

350/(8) This section does not restrict the provision that may be made under any other provision of this Act.
351/(9) “Relevant record” means—
352|(a) a health record {within the meaning given in section 205 of the Data Protection Act 2018),

(b) arecord of, or held by, a local authority and compiled in connection with a function under this Part or a social services function
353 (within the meaning given in section 1A of the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970,

(c) a record held by a person registered under Part 2 of the Care Standards Act 2000 [F18, Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and Social
354 Care Act 2008 or Part 1 of the Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016], or
355/ (d) a record of such other description as may be specified in the regulations.

356
337
Visible
158 on the
359 Are copies of the following available: Internet
360 Carers' Needs Assessment & date produced
361 Carers' Strategy & time period covered
Carers' Market Position Statement & date

362| produced
363 | Co-Production:
364 Co-design, including planning of services
363 Co-decision making in the allocation of resources
366 Co-delivery of services, including volunteers
367 ;,U Co-evaluation of the service
368 «Q
368 ®

! w
370 (o))
3n

372

-




Integrated Care E‘HB
Northamptonshire Northamptonshire

——————— Integrated Care Board
Carers partnersHiP

Valuing Carers as Equal & Expert Partners in Care...

Northamptonshire
All Ages Integrated
Carers Support Strategy
2023-2027

o Mo
Integrated Care Northamptonshire Quality Board — July 2023 Nt e



West Northamptonshire Council

OOOOO

Carer Strategy

* CQCinspections: many councils developing their own strategy

e Strategy to be specifically developed for the WNC population and the needs of
its people but will align with the Northamptonshire carers strategy

* Production of an implementation plan

* |Involve co-production with carers, include staff Carers Network

* Stakeholder engagement with contracted provider and the NHS

* Engagement events around the patch

* Consultation on the draft strategy

* Use of national carer survey data (going out 01/10/23)

* Aimed at improving outcomes and wellbeing for the carers and cared for of WNC

* NNC want to follow a similar engagement process for their strategy

I‘S |



Cy===m Engagement & Task & Finish Group

* Engagement plan being finalised with Communications & Engagement Team

 Hold an event in every LAP

* Some specialist carer events for LD, autism and dementia carers

* Microsoft Teams event in the evening and at a weekend

* Events asking, What works well, What does not and What would carers do if
they could improve support for carers?

Scrutiny Task & Finish Group request

* Benefit of councillor support

* Local knowledge of carer issues and potential gaps in support
e Support for their respective LAP engagement events

* Guidance on the strategy development

* Part of the coproduction with residents of WNC

6€ abed



This page is intentionally left blank



West
Northamptonshire
Council

Quality In Care Homes

6t September 2023




ek i CQC Profiling — West Northamptonshire
Council
WNC CQC Profile Percentages
0 .||ll .l‘ll .I|ll I

M nadequate M Requires Improvement M Good M Outstanding M Not Stated ® |nadequate ® Requires Improvement = Good = Outstanding




Council

\

Contract

Compliance | pefinition
Status

Norhamptonshire Compliance Summary

Major default
2%

Moderate
2%

The provider meets and can evidence the required standard of]
the relevant WNC (West Northants Council) Contract.

Non-compliant Welcome Visit
5%

The provider is not meeting minimum standards as set out in
their contractual obligations. There is a need to improve but
Customers are not deemed to be at direct or immediate risk.

Minor
7%

The provider is not meeting minimum standards as set out in
their contractual obligations. There is a potential that

customers are at risk through the areas of non-compliance, but
it is not direct or immediate

The provider is not meeting minimum standards of their
contractual obligations
and customers are deemed to be at direct and immediate risk.

The provider is not meeting minimum standards of their
Serious contractual obligations

Default and there is deemed to be a serious or dangerous breach of
standards and/or customer safety.

Serious Default
1%

Compliant
83%




West
MNorthamptonshire
Council

\

KNew

contract framework \
Live in May 2023 for 10 years

59 providers across WN signed up

New contractual standards around quality and
innovation

New enhanced fee rates promoting sustainability

and innovation

ﬂntensive Quality Support Offer

Increased quality monitoring requirements

ICB to joint framework

Tiered offer of support to ensure we support the
highest priority providers

Hands on support offer to help providers manage

improvements plans
Engage with service users and consider the views

of people receiving the services

U
K

N

N

_

Collaborative Quality Monitoring with ICB

Opportunities explored to share resources
Utilising the clinical expertise of the ICB Quality
Team

Joint Quality Improvement Programme agreed
(see next slide)

Improved strategic improvement programme

driven by the Quality Board J

\

Robust Escalation Processes

<

MDT approach to tackle significant concerns
Ensure the safety of people come first
Ensure safeguarding concerns are dealt with
quickly and effectively.

/




West
MNorthamptonshire
Council

fMission: \

* To reduce hidden costs relating to hospital admissions relating to poor quality care
* Provide better quality care to vulnerable people
* Help our providers to become viable and sustainable business so they are in important part of our communities

.

/
\

/Objectives:

* To have no inadequate rates services in West Northamptonshire

* To improve the number of requires improvements services to less than 20%

* Focus development of the market onto “Safe” and “Well Led” KLOE’s as these will reap the most benefits
\’ Move up the CQC National Statistics Timetable W,




How are we going to achieve our objectives?

Integration with
Skills4Care — 40 identified
providers have been
enrolled on the Leadership
Programme Training

Analysis of Northants
market as a whole based
on CQC ratings,
particularly in Safe and
Well Led

Improvement
Accountability & Spotlight
Circle

Lead to Succeed Training

Well Led Programe

Fob and QR code Initiative
to all Nursing services with
templates, best practice
information and clinical
protocols

Supportive Development
Forums

Monthly Advice Clinics by
WNC

Applying for funding for
STRONGER TOGETHER, for
free training for Registered
Manager’s from a different

perspective

Clinical Supervision &
Revalidation of Nursing
Managers

Nominated Individual/CEO
guidance and peer support

Sundown Tracker for co-

production working and

monthly self assessment
tool




Agenda Item 9

West
Northamptonshire
Council

Adult Care and Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Integrated Care across
Northamptonshire (iCAN)
Scrutiny Review

Page 47



Index

Chair’s Foreword

Executive Summary

Final report including recommendations

APPENDICES

Appendix A Scope of the Review

13

35

Page 48



Chair’s Foreword

| am pleased to present this report resulting from the work of the Task and Finish Panel set
up by the former People Overview and Scrutiny Committee to scrutinise the results being
produced by Integrated Care across Northamptonshire (iCAN).

iCAN was a joint health and social care transformation programme focussed on support for
frail people over 65 years of age in the county. The programme was intended to help older
people to remain living independently for longer, producing better health outcomes for them
and helping to manage demand on acute hospital care. iCAN remains one of four priority
areas of work for Integrated Care Northamptonshire.

The choice of this topic for scrutiny reflects West Northamptonshire Council’s corporate
priority to improve the life chances of all residents. The scrutiny review had the following key
lines of enquiry:

e Can Overview and Scrutiny take confidence that the iCAN programme is delivering the
outcomes that it is intended to achieve? iCAN is intended both to improve the experience
that people have of health and social care in West Northamptonshire and also to deliver
financial savings in the local health and social care system.

e How is the overall assessment of progress made by the iCAN programme reflected in the
lived experience of service users and staff members?

| would like to thank the councillors who made up the Task and Finish Panel with me for their
efforts and the professionals and patients’ representatives who contributed information and
views to the Panel.

The Task and Finish Panel gained a picture of positive actions delivered under the iCAN
programme but was ultimately not able to reach a clear conclusion about the overall value
added by the programme, in part due to changes to the operating context and to the focus
and delivery of the programme during the scrutiny review. This may be an issue that the Adult
Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee wishes to take further. In any case, | hope
that the recommendations presented here can still contribute to strengthening future
services for residents of West Northamptonshire.

Councillor Emma Roberts
Chair, iCAN Task and Finish Panel

Page 49



Acknowledgements to all those who took part in the Scrutiny Review:

e Councillors Janice Duffy, Andre Gonzalez De Savage, Rosie Herring, Rosie Humphreys,
Wendy Randall and Sue Sharps, who sat with me on the Panel.

e Senior leaders involved in the delivery of the iCAN programme or working in related areas:
Kim Curry, iCAN Delivery Director; Katie Brown, Assistant Director Safeguarding and
Wellbeing, West Northamptonshire Council; and Julie Curtis, Delivery Director Health and
Care Integration, West Northamptonshire Council.

e Representatives from Newton Europe, the system transformation partner supporting
delivery of the iCAN programme: Rosanne Furniss, Director; Adam Walker, Director; and
Sam Newton, Business Manager.

e Members of the iCAN People Advisory Group: Mark Major (Chair), Alan Christie, Julie
Thew and Sheila White.

e Senior leaders from East Midlands Ambulance Service: Michael Jones, Divisional Director

Northamptonshire; Lee Brentnall, Divisional Senior Manager for Quality; and
Martin Claydon, Head of Operations.

Page 50



Executive Summary

The purpose of the scrutiny review was to scrutinise the delivery of intended outcomes from
the Integrated Care across Northamptonshire (iCAN) programme at key points during the
period of the programme contract. iCAN was a joint health and social care transformation
programme intended to produce benefits in terms of improved outcomes for residents,
reduced operating costs and less reliance on acute hospital care through increased focus on
community-based care, prevention and joint working within the care system.

The scrutiny review links to West Northamptonshire Council’s corporate priority to improve

the life chances of all residents and to the following specific aims:

e to support adults to live independent and self-sufficient lives for as long as possible

e to provide support needed by people who are vulnerable or lack a support network

e towork with the health sector in more integrated ways, ensuring our residents can “chose
well, stay well and live well.”

The scrutiny review was carried out by a Task and Finish Panel of the People Overview and
Scrutiny Committee across four meetings from January — September 2022. The scrutiny
review was intended to run for a longer period but a change in the delivery model for the
iCAN programme whilst the scrutiny review was underway made it logical for the Panel to
report back on its findings at this point.

The Task and Finish Panel has considered the following matters during its work:

e iCAN programme aims and progress towards the delivery of intended outcomes at key
‘stage gate’ points in the programme contract

e How patients and service users were informing the iCAN programme and how the
programme was affecting their experiences of services

e How the iCAN programme might affect, or be affected by, the provision of emergency first
response in West Northamptonshire.

The information and comment that expert advisors provided to the Task and Finish Panel is
set out in section 6 of this report below.

After all of the evidence was collated the Task and Finish Panel reached the following
conclusions:

Focus of the iCAN programme

The Task and Finish Panel recognised that the iCAN programme was set up to focus on
improving support for a specific group of people in the local population — frail adults over 65
years of age — in order both to improve their health outcomes and to make better use of
available resources and reduce demand on acute care in Northamptonshire. At the same
time, the Panel wishes to make the point that more general work on frailty should not be
linked solely to age. A person’s physical condition is not determined solely by their age: many
people over 65 years of age are not frail and some people affected by frailty are below this
age. The Panel encourages that this principle is taken into account appropriately in the

Page 51



development of future support for people in West Northamptonshire who are living with
frailty, building on the iCAN programme.

The Task and Finish Panel considered that focussing the iCAN programme on the two acute
hospitals in Northamptonshire, although logical geographically, could risk people living near
to the borders of the county being disadvantaged in relation to the standard of care available
to them. The Panel noted, for example, that residents of South Northamptonshire are likely
to access acute care in Oxfordshire, rather than at Northampton or Kettering general
hospitals. People living in this area who are in the target group for the iCAN programme
therefore may not benefit from it, as well as potentially being affected by other issues relating
to joined-up working or information-sharing that might result from receiving acute care from
a different integrated care system. The Panel encourages that moving forward the iCAN
programme and any related work that succeeds it should be focussed as far as possible on
people (the services available to residents of Northamptonshire) rather than on place (the
locations from which services are delivered).

Thirdly, the Task and Finish Panel commented that services intended to enable frail older
people to remain living independently and to enable a more focussed use of acute care should
ideally operate for 24 hours a day on 7 days a week. The Panel highlighted that people
concerned about retaining their independence and their dignity could continue to live at
home in difficulty until they reached a crisis point, which would not necessarily occur during
business hours. If alternative provision was not available at this point they would come into
acute care. The Panel therefore encourages that business cases for future services arising
from the iCAN programme should be based on the principle that all services should be
available 24/7.

Lastly, the Task and Finish Panel wishes to highlight that future development of iCAN support
must be effectively linked in to the work of the nine new Local Area Partnerships (LAPs) to be
established in West Northamptonshire. This should logically occur: iCAN is one of the priority
areas in the Integrated Care Northamptonshire Strategy 2023 —2033; the LAPs are an intrinsic
part of the integrated care system structure that are intended to translate strategy into local
action. The Panel recognises that the LAPs were not in place when the original iCAN
programme was developed and implemented. The Panel therefore sees a benefit in
reinforcing that this important connection must be made effectively.

Outcomes delivered by the iCAN programme

The Task and Finish Panel welcomed examples of work under the iCAN programme having a
positive impact on services that it was able to see as the scrutiny review progressed.
In January 2022 the Panel noted that staff training at Kettering General Hospital had reduced
the time taken to complete pre-discharge needs assessments of patients: the Panel
considered that this was exactly the type of outcome that the programme should produce.
In April 2022 the Panel was advised that front door trial projects at the two acute hospitals
had enabled frailty teams to double the daily average number of patients seen. In September
2022 the Panel was advised that the average length of stay in hospital for people in the scope
of the iCAN programme had been reduced by 1.63 days compared to April 2021, which was
also producing a benefit of around 40,000 annual bed days across both acute hospitals.

6
Page 52



The Panel also noted that service-users were giving positive feedback about the practical
difference being made by iCAN programme initiatives.

The challenge that the Task and Finish Panel experienced during the scrutiny review was
gaining a clear picture of sustained positive outcomes from the iCAN programme in return for
the resources committed to it, including the cost of the external system transformation
partner Newton Europe. In part this reflected significant changes to the operating context for
the programme during its implementation. It was highlighted to the Panel that the COVID-19
pandemic had occurred between the design and delivery of the programme and that the
impact of the pandemic needed to be taken into account in assessing the outcomes being
delivered by the programme. The Panel was advised in April 2022 that the acute care system
was at that point outperforming the targets set in the original iCAN business case for
attendances, admissions, length of stay and bed days and, overall, the number of acute care
beds being used by non-elective patients over 65 years of age had fallen below the 2019
baseline. The Panel was advised that changes to ways of working made under the programme
were contributing to this position but it had also been affected by the pandemic. The Panel
subsequently heard in September 2022 that the acute care system in Northamptonshire was
operating with fewer overall beds than anticipated when the programme had commenced,
due to the pandemic and other factors, and that bed days being saved by the programme
were covering this reduction. Therefore, the Panel could not accept there was clear evidence
of sustained and positive outcomes.

The Task and Finish Panel was advised that the level of challenge faced by the acute care
sector after the start of the iCAN programme had led to the need to increase its focus on
contributing to system pressures in the immediate future rather than over the next five years.
The context for the programme had also been changed with the publication of Census 2021
information in June 2022, which showed a large increase in the number of people over 65
years of age in Northamptonshire with the number of people of 70 years of age showing the
most significant increase and going up faster than had been projected in the original iCAN
business case.

The Task and Finish Panel raised the need for demographic projections informing the iCAN
programme to be reviewed in order to identify whether the latest census data would affect
the resources required for the programme and the savings it will deliver. The Panel makes the
same point to West Northamptonshire Council in relation to any further phase of work
carrying on from the original iCAN programme.

In addition, the Panel emphasises that assessment of the outcomes produced by iCAN
initiatives must look at the patient experience behind improved headline-level performance.
The Panel stated during the scrutiny review that performance on acute care bed occupancy
and length of stay needed to be judged in the full context. A reduction in the number of people
over 65 years of age attending hospital during the past year could be due to a range of factors
in addition to the effect of iCAN. In turn, it would not be a positive outcome if vulnerable
people were being discharged too soon. The Panel sought reassurance that discharge
decisions were not based on an assumption that everyone had support in place to enable
them to live independently. Decisions also needed to take account of ‘human factors’: some
people at the point of being discharged from hospital could be too proud to say that they
needed help or could just want to get back to their own homes. The Panel encouraged that,

7
Page 53



as far as possible, patients, families and carers should be involved in producing a patient’s
post-discharge care plan and be informed about, and have confidence in, what would happen
to the patient after they were discharged from acute care. There should also be an
appropriate handover to any new organisation that would be providing care to a patient after
they were discharged.

On a point related to care after discharge, the Task and Finish Panel was advised that people
discharged from hospital should receive a phone call from their GP practice 48 hours
afterwards to check their support needs and inform their care plan, which was a requirement
in GP contracts. The Panel raised the need to check how consistently GPs in West
Northamptonshire were meeting this requirement. Anecdotal information suggested this was
not the case. The Panel also highlights the importance of monitoring the number of frail older
people re-admitted to hospital and of including this as a measure when judging the
effectiveness of the original iCAN programme and any further phase of work that builds on it.

Development of an iCAN collaborative

The Task and Finish Panel was given an overview in September 2022 of plans to develop iCAN
using the ‘collaborative’ organisational model, as was the case for work in all four of
Integrated Care Northamptonshire’s priority areas. The collaborative model provides a legal
framework for relevant organisations to work together in partnership to plan and deliver local
services. The proposed establishment of collaboratives reflected the need to establish distinct
programmes as permanent ways of working, to secure benefits achieved so far and develop
a service delivery model that created the conditions for integrated working in the long term.
The Panel was advised that the iCAN collaborative would be a structure to bring together staff
working on common areas not an employing organisation. It was anticipated that the initial
basis for joint working would be a memorandum of understanding, with the potential for
delegation to a lead provider in future. The Panel considered that the joined up approach
reflected in the iCAN collaborative was positive but emphasised that it should not result in
reduced accountability, which could increase the risk of service delivery slipping or
partnerships not operating affectively.

iCAN and emergency medical response

The Task and Finish Panel recognised that the iCAN programme itself is not directly concerned
with the emergency medical response element of the health system. At the same time, the
Panel considered that it was valid to look at links between the two areas: part of the purpose
of the iCAN programme was to manage the level of pressure on acute care in the county; one
of the effects of this pressure could be to increase handover times for ambulances at acute
hospitals, with consequent effects on emergency response capacity. The Panel was reassured
to hear that Northamptonshire was in a better position than other parts of the East Midlands
in terms of time spent by East Midlands Ambulance Service personnel waiting to hand over
patients at the two acute hospitals in the county. The Panel also noted however this still left
many patients in difficult positions and was far from perfect. The Panel welcomed feedback
on the positive impact of particular initiatives that broadened the way in which emergency
care could be provided or that supported independent living for frail older people, including
work being done under the iCAN programme. The Panel therefore considered that taking a
wider view helped to inform its understanding of the benefits that iCAN could produce.

8
Page 54



When the Task and Finish Panel sought to consider the relationship between support for
independent living and emergency medical response needs it touched on the contribution of
community first responders: volunteers who are trained to attend certain types of emergency
calls in their local areas to provide care before the arrival of more highly skilled medical
professionals. The Panel noted the obvious benefit produced by community first responder
schemes, particularly in rural areas where an ambulance may take longer to arrive. As a small
practical outcome from this scrutiny review the Panel proposes that it would be beneficial for
all councillors to be provided with more information about schemes operating in their local
areas, to inform them about a source of support for members of the community and,
potentially, to enable them to encourage involvement in these schemes.

Conclusion of the scrutiny review

The Task and Finish Panel wishes to highlight that it has not been able to bring its work to as
neat a conclusion as was set out in its original scope. After the Panel’s last meeting in
September 2022 a further meeting was scheduled in December 2022 but had to be postponed
for practical reasons. Efforts were then made to schedule another Panel meeting in Spring
2023, before the Chair was advised that the programme had changed to a local authority-
based delivery model, with a new lead officer. The Panel would have benefited from better
communication about this situation, which contributed to producing a gap in its work and
guestions that it was still seeking to resolve about the outcomes delivered by the iCAN
programme. Specific questions were outstanding around the cost of the programme to the
Council so far and information on how the reported improvements had equated into financial
savings as projected by the original reports. Given the changes affecting the subject of the
scrutiny review, as well as recent changes to the operation of the Council’s Overview and
Scrutiny Function, the Chair took the view that it was most appropriate for the Panel to report
back to the Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny on the work it had completed and
also enable the Committee to decide how it wished to proceed further on this topic. However,
the Panel raises the need for that Committee to seek a clearer picture than it has been able
to obtain so far of the benefits generated by the iCAN programme in return for the resources
committed to it by West Northamptonshire Council and in turn how these have benefitted
residents and supported the live your best life priority.

Based on these conclusions, the Task and Finish Panel makes the following recommendations:

Focus of the iCAN programme

A) The Cabinet to agree that the development of future support for people living with frailty
in West Northamptonshire should not link frailty solely to age and should include
appropriate provision for affected people below 65 years of age.

B) The Cabinet to agree that the development of any future services supporting
independent living for frail older people in West Northamptonshire following on from the
iCAN programme should include provision for residents living near the borders of
Northamptonshire who are likely to be treated at hospitals in neighbouring areas.

C) The Cabinet to agree that business cases for any future services supporting independent
living for frail older people in West Northamptonshire following on from the iCAN

9
Page 55



programme should be based on the principle that services are capable of being deployed
at any time during the day and week.

D) The Cabinet to agree that a feature of the development of new Local Area Partnerships
in West Northamptonshire should be to look at how they link in with iCAN programme
initiatives.

Outcomes delivered by the iCAN programme

E) The Cabinet to agree to a review of demographic projections informing the development
of any future services supporting independent living for frail older people in West
Northamptonshire following on from the iCAN programme, in order to identify the effect
of any differences between previous projections and actual Census 2021 information.

F) The Cabinet to agree that the development of any future services supporting
independent living for frail older people in West Northamptonshire following on from the
iCAN programme should ensure that actions to improve headline performance on length
of stay in acute care do not result in worse outcomes for patients in practice.

G) The Cabinet to agree to seek confirmation from the appropriate authority that
GP practices in West Northamptonshire are consistently contacting patients discharged
from hospital within 48 hours as required by GP contracts and that action to reinforce
compliance is taken where necessary.

H) The Cabinet to agree that re-admissions of frail older people to acute care should be
included in data used to judge the effectiveness of the original iCAN programme and any
future services supporting independent living for frail older people in West
Northamptonshire following on from it.

Development of an iCAN collaborative

) The Cabinet to agree that the development of the iCAN Collaborative should ensure that
the new organisational model does not lead to reduced accountability for the
effectiveness of the services involved.

iCAN and emergency medical response

J)  The Cabinet to agree that West Northamptonshire Council should arrange for all
councillors to be provided with information about local community first responder
schemes in their respective Local Area Partnership areas.

Conclusion of the scrutiny review

K) The Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to agree to request a report
to a future meeting confirming:
e The total financial cost to West Northamptonshire Council of the iCAN programme to
the end of 2022/23, including the cost of the system transformation partner
e The positive outcomes directly resulting from the iCAN programme delivered to the
end of 2022/23.

10
Page 56



Assessing the impact of the scrutiny review

L) The Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to agree to review the
impact of the scrutiny review six months after the presentation of the final report to
decision-makers.

11
Page 57



12

Page 58



11

3.1

3.2

West Northamptonshire Council
Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Report of the iCAN Task and Finish Panel

Purpose and Rationale

The purpose of the scrutiny review was to scrutinise the delivery of intended
outcomes from the iCAN programme at key points during the period of the
programme contract. iCAN was a joint health and social care transformation
programme intended to produce benefits in terms of improved outcomes for
residents, reduced operating costs and less reliance on acute hospital care through
increased focus on community-based care, prevention and joint working within the
care system.

Key Lines of Enquiry

e Can Overview and Scrutiny take confidence that the iCAN programme is delivering
the outcomes that it is intended to achieve? iCAN is intended both to improve the
experience that people have of health and social care in West Northamptonshire
and also to deliver financial savings in the local health and social care system.

e How isthe overall assessment of progress made by the iCAN programme reflected
in the lived experience of service users and staff members?

A copy of the scope of the Scrutiny Review is attached at Appendix A.
Context and Background

The People Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 21 September 2021
scrutinised the progress made with the development of iCAN and the position on key
risk factors that could affect delivery of the programme. As a result of this item of
business the Committee agreed to establish a Task and Finish Panel to provide further
oversight of the delivery of iCAN programme outcomes, linked to the gateway review
points in the contract. The Task and Finish Panel comprised Councillor Emma Roberts
(Chair) and Councillors Janice Duffy, Councillor Andre Gonzalez De Savage,
Rosie Herring, Rosie Humphreys, Wendy Randall and Sue Sharps.

The iCAN Task and Finish Panel carried out its work across four meetings on
26 January, 27 April, 8 July and 27 September 2022. The Panel was due to meet again
on 19 December 2022 but this meeting had to be postponed due to ill-health and
other factors that prevented participants from attending. Efforts were then made to
schedule another Panel meeting in Spring 2023, before it was confirmed to the Chair
at the end of April that the iCAN programme had changed to a local authority-based
delivery model. In light of this significant change to the previous programme, the gap
in Panel meetings, and the impending changes to Overview and Scrutiny, the Chair

13

Page 59



4.1

5.1

5.2

took the view that it was most appropriate for the Panel to report back to the Adult
Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny on the work it had done and also enable the
Committee to decide how it wished to proceed on this topic. The way in which the
Panel’s work ultimately came to an end is the subject of further comment in section 7
of the report below.

Corporate Priorities

This scrutiny review links to the Council’s corporate priority to improve the life chances

of all residents and to the following specific aims:

e to support adults to live independent and self-sufficient lives for as long
as possible

e to provide support needed by people who are vulnerable or lack a support
network

e to work with the health sector in more integrated ways, ensuring our residents
can “chose well, stay well and live well.”

Background - rationale and aims of iCAN

iCAN is one of the four priority areas for Northamptonshire’s Integrated Care System.
The Integrated Care Northamptonshire Strategy 2023 — 2033 sets out the
following aims:

iCAN is about improving the quality of care on offer for older people in our county.
We want to achieve the best possible health and wellbeing outcomes for older people
and support them to stay independent for as long as possible. To meet the needs of
adults over the age of 65, the elderly and those who are frail, the three core aims of
the iCAN programme are to:

e ensure we choose well: no one is in hospital without a need to be there

e ensure people can stay well

e ensure people can live well: by staying at home if that is right for them.

The iCAN programme involved work on three focus areas, referred to as pillars:

Ensure that frail people in the community
receive the right care and support at the Maintaining people’s wellness and
right time so that they can live as independence to reduce crisis escalations
independently as possible

COMMUNITY
RESILIENCE

FRAILTY ESCALATION Ensuring that frail patients are only admitted Ensuring we have the right capacity and

& FRONT DOOR to hospital if they need an intervention that  structure in the community so only those
can only be delivered in hospital that need it go to hospital

Ensuring that patients receive the right care
FLOW AND GRIP at the right time with access to the right ~ Reducing the number of patients without a
services, so that they can live as ‘Reason to Reside’
independently as possible

14

Page 60



5.3 The original timing for progression of the iCAN programme contact through key ‘stage
gate’ points identified in September 2021 was as follows:

StageGate 1 Stage Gate 3 Stage Gate 4 Stage Gate 5 Stage Gate 6
Stage Gate 0 Stage Gate 2

Contract
completion
Gateway

*

Flow and Grip Pillar

Front Door Escalation and Frailty

g
=
1]
=
o
=]
]
>
@

©
<2}
wy
m
(&}
w
v
w
=
[%2]
=

o

Winter Planning and schemes set up

2021 2022

5.4 A report presented to the West Northamptonshire Council Cabinet in July 2021
seeking approval to commission an external system transformation partner to support
delivery of the iCAN programme made the following points about the need for iCAN
and the benefits it was intended to deliver, as they were understood at that time:

Our population is growing older and people are living longer with complex conditions.
The number of people living in Northamptonshire is expected to grow from 741,000 in
2018 to 803,000 by 2028 — that’s an increase of more than 8% in 10 years. But for our
elderly population there has been a steady increase in the over 65s of around 65% from
122,000 in 2014 to an anticipated 201,000 by 2034 and this its rising and faster than
most other areas. We are also seeing a rise in mental health demand and the longer
term implications of some of our health inequalities.

[..]

The Northamptonshire Health and Care system has been challenged over many years
and this has been characterised by:

e Too many people being admitted to our hospitals

e 91 over 65s are admitted each day and this is increasing

e  Patients staying too long and when they no longer need acute care

e Delays in discharging people

e Very high occupancy in our hospitals

e Aninability to cope with any surge in demand and pressured winters

e Too much reliance on bed based solutions in hospital and on discharge

e Significant financial pressure on our budgets

15
Page 61



5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

e Alack of capacity in our facilities and workforce to meet the demand
e A knock on impact to social care in care costs and market capacity to meet the
demand.

[..]

iCAN is a joint initiative and builds on the transformation of Adult Social Care that was
commenced in 2019. The iCAN programme would see the realisation of benefits across
health and social care in terms of improved outcomes for residents, reduced operating
costs and less reliance on acute hospital care as the focus shifts to more community
based care, prevention and joint working.

We know that Acute hospital beds are extremely costly to maintain (at an estimated
£200 a day) and when people stay too long, they have poor outcomes and increasing
need for long term social care support. As a system we want to do more to care for
more people at home, ensure they don’t stay in hospital too long and that they are
returned back to independence and their own homes. This is better for them, better for
the hospitals and more cost effective too.

Whilst creating significant improvement to the experience people have of health and
Social Care locally, the successful implementation of iCAN is also designed to deliver
between £13.3m and £18m recurrent savings to the local Health and Social
Care System.

A presentation given to the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on
21 September 2021 referred to in paragraph 3.1 above included the following points
that further reinforced the importance of iCAN and of the outcomes it was intended
to deliver:

e iCAN is a priority because we recognise that frail and elderly care is the single
biggest area of demand, activity, acute care, cost and performance
improvement areas.

e  Without iCAN by 2025 the system of health and care risks being overwhelmed by
increased demand. iCAN is critical to enabling the system to cope.

e By 2024, the programme will be delivering a recurrent gross saving of £13.3m per
year (stretch target of £18m).

Information Collection

Expert advisors provided information and comment to the Task and Finish Panel at
meetings on 26 January, 27 April, 8 July and 27 September 2022.

This section of the report sets out comments made by expert advisors to the Task and
Finish Panel in each of the main areas considered during the scrutiny review. The
Panel’s own conclusions and recommendations are set out in section 7 of the report.

The date when expert advisors commented to the Task and Finish Panel is indicated
in each case, to reflect that the subject of this scrutiny review was the development
of, and the outcomes produced by, a specific programme over time.

16

Page 62



iCAN programme aims and progress towards the delivery of intended outcomes at
key ‘stage gate’ points in the programme contract

26 January 2022
Rosanne Furniss, Director, Newton Europe

e The overall picture regarding performance against high-level metrics for the iCAN
programme was positive. Significant work was being done to look at how to
measure practical outcomes from the patient perspective and incorporate these
into the performance monitoring process.

e The number of people attending Accident and Emergency (A&E) departments was
an indicator of the effect of the iCAN programme: if the programme was working
the number should reduce. Performance was currently ahead of target but this
was due to the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic. Before the pandemic there had
been a rising trend in A&E attendances. The pandemic had resulted in a massive
decrease in attendance, particularly amongst people aged over 65 years, which
had not yet returned to a stable position.

e The number of people aged over 65 years admitted to hospital in
Northamptonshire and the length of hospital stays were also currently ahead of
target due to the effect of the pandemic.

e The number of days that a person aged over 65 years was in a hospital bed was a
further performance indicator used for the iCAN programme. Prior to the
pandemic this had been 25,000 bed days per month. The current figure was lower
but needed to be analysed to check that it was due to the provision of support and
not due to the pandemic.

e Work was being done on all of the performance metrics to ensure that they gave
an informed view of the actual effect of iCAN programme measures. It was not
being claimed that the programme had produced the apparent performance
improvements seen at this point.

e Stage Gate 3 of the iCAN programme contract had been rescheduled to 1 March
2022. Work was currently being done on developing lower level metrics to produce
a picture at this point that would quantify the operational impact of the iCAN
programme on performance, as distinct from the impact of the pandemic and of
national measures.

e The residential care and domiciliary care sectors were currently operating under
considerable pressure. The iCAN programme would contribute to addressing this
situation: fewer people entering acute care should reduce resulting demand on
residential care. Work was being done with care providers to map the level of
demand and capacity needed in the area and to build this into the long term care
model, in order to ensure that sufficient capacity was available.

e The flow and grip pillar included work to improve the processes and timings for
requesting long term care, which had already been reduced from 11.5 to 2.5 days.

e Current demands on paramedics were an example of why it was important that
iCAN was a whole-system approach. The East Midlands Ambulance Service was

17
Page 63



very involved in the programme. The level of demand on the care system made it
necessary to look at how overall capacity and resources were deployed to best
effect. The duration of the iCAN transformation programme reflected that it took
time to re-balance existing arrangements.

e A complex discharge from hospital involved a needs assessment of the patient in
order to set up an appropriate support package. Staff training on the assessment
process at Kettering General Hospital had reduced the time taken to complete
assessments. Performance at Northampton General Hospital was at a similar level
but had been more consistent.

e A range of work was being done to improve information-sharing within the care
system. The Northamptonshire Analytics Reporting Platform (NARP) was intended
to give common access to information.

Assistant Director Safeguarding and Wellbeing

e There was sufficient residential care capacity in West Northamptonshire: staffing
was the area of pressure.

e There was not a disparity in the time it took to place someone in residential care
between local authority-funded and self-funded care.

e Northamptonshire was due to implement the Northamptonshire Care Record
(NCR), an integrated care record across all health and care providers, in April 2022.

e Work was being done on supporting the domiciliary care market with the aim that
West Northamptonshire Council funding to providers was directed to the
workforce.

e The COVID-19 Omicron variant had produced a further impact on the care market
and had highlighted more underlying issues about the state of the market and local
authorities’ approach to commissioning.

o Oxfordshire took a different approach to whole-system working than
Northamptonshire. Discharge assessments for patients at the Horton Hospital in
Banbury did go through Northamptonshire, although the effectiveness of the
current approach needed to be assessed. The number of Northamptonshire
residents admitted to hospital in Warwickshire was relatively small. The main
cross-border issues for Northamptonshire related to Oxfordshire. Addressing
these issues was part of future planning.

e There were challenges relating to care provision in South Northamptonshire, for
example, regarding the availability of domiciliary care.

e The iCAN programme would assist in identifying and developing the amount of
night-time care needed in West Northamptonshire.

e Multi-disciplinary teams providing wrap-around care had been operating across
Northamptonshire since November 2021. The effect of this provision would be
reviewed to identify if it was reducing overall demand or just dealing with the same
demand in different ways. Wrap-around support for people discharged from
hospitals at weekends was an area that needed further attention.

18
Page 64



27 April 2022
iCAN Delivery Director

e Challenges arising since the start of the iCAN programme had resulted in the need
to increase its focus on contributing to system pressures in the immediate future,
not just over the next five years. Phase 2 of the programme beginning in May 2022
represented the foundation programme phase. It would focus on actions intended
to have a significant impact on reducing attendances and admissions to acute care;
reducing escalation in care needs; reducing the length of stay in acute care,
building on existing improvements; improved used of support at home; and
developing performance dashboards to give better oversight of performance.

e The five year route map for iCAN was still at the heart of the programme.
Business Manager, Newton Europe

e Community resilience pillar — There had been challenges at the end of 2021 due to
work responding to the COVID-19 pandemic but strong elements of the new iCAN
approach were already in place. Specific actions were having an impact and had
produced positive feedback from service users. Additional provision had been
made to mitigate a surge next winter.

e Frailty escalation and front door / Flow and grip pillars — Front door trial projects
at the two acute hospitals had enabled frailty teams to double the daily average
number of patients seen and enabled geriatricians to identify people who could
continue to live at home with support. Work on flow and grip was helping to
provide the right support to individuals to achieve the best outcomes.

e The health system was currently exceeding the targets in the original iCAN
business case for attendance: overall, the number of beds being used by
non-elective patients over 65 years of age was below the 2019 baseline. New ways
of working introduced under the iCAN programme were contributing to this, but
performance had also been affected by the pandemic.

e The front door trial projects currently operated for 8 hours a day on 5 days a week.
The trial was intended to demonstrate their impact. This would inform a business
case for the future, which might include extending the operating time.

e People who were frail were identified at the front door of the acute system using
a frailty assessment process and by a specialist frailty clinician.

e AlliCAN programme metrics had improved since the baselines were originally set
in 2019. Oversight of performance was being developed, for example, by adding
key performance indicators on patients classed as ‘stranded’ (in hospital for 7 days
or more) and ‘super stranded’ (in hospital for 21 days or more) and enhancing
focus on patients’ reasons to reside in hospital.

19
Page 65



8 July 2022
iCAN Delivery Director

e The context for the iCAN programme had changed in that Census 2021 information
now available showed a large increase in the number of people over 65 years of
age in Northamptonshire. The number of people over 70 years of age had the most
significant increase and was going up faster than had been projected in the original
iCAN business case.

e A new phase of the iCAN programme was designed to bridge the gap between
short- and long term demand.

e Forecasts for delivery against the three main iCAN metrics showed a slight upward
trend, which reinforced the importance of contextualising the programme
effectively. Activity was expected to move back more towards pre-pandemic levels
and there needed to be a good picture of how the programme was affecting this,
informed by both high level data and the bottom up view.

e Positive outcomes were being seen. Waiting times at Kettering General Hospital
for patients to be discharged had been reduced. Throughput for CT scans had
improved and was actually ahead of trajectory at the current time.

e Collaborative work being done to improve the intermediate care discharge
pathway was a crucial aspect of overall work to improve community pathways,
particularly given long term demand. This was an exciting piece of collaboration
that had been identified through the iCAN programme.

e The ICS model required the formation of provider collaboratives to address
inequalities in health outcomes and improve service effectiveness. The iCAN
programme was one of the priorities for the Northamptonshire ICS. It was
necessary for it to develop from a transformational programme to a collaborative
by April 2023, which would involve a significant amount of work.

e There was a clear picture of how working as a collaborative should assist in
addressing priority issues relating to hospital admissions and stays, maximising
independent living and making best use of available resources.

e The direction of travel against the key metrics was as anticipated: performance
would worsen before it improved. The challenge was that the pandemic had
occurred between the design and delivery of the iCAN programme.

e The Stage Gate 4 review point had been delayed to allow further work to review
operational forecasts for the key iCAN metrics to reflect the current context.

e |t was not currently expected that changes in the operating context of the iCAN
programme would change associated spending or savings.

e Work on improving community pathways was focussed exactly on understanding
what capacity was needed in Northamptonshire for home care packages and how
this could be provided.

20
Page 66



27 September 2022
Adam Walker, Director, Newton Europe

e The total annual bed days for each of Northampton General Hospital and Kettering
General Hospital was approximately 200,000.

e The total acute care bed base in Northamptonshire was approximately 1,200 beds
across Northampton General Hospital and Kettering General Hospital. Between
the initial diagnostic that informed iCAN and the start of the iCAN programme this
had been reduced by 180 beds: 72 beds had been lost due to COVID-19 infection
control measures and 108 for other reasons. The first 72 beds had now been
returned to the base but the acute care system was still operating with 108 fewer
beds than anticipated when the iCAN programme had started. The iCAN
programme was now saving enough bed days to cover this reduction, which was
why performance was green-rated but the practical impact of this seemed less
apparent.

e When hospitals were operating with 90% bed occupancy it affected patient flow
and this would filter back to A&E.

e The iCAN programme ultimately should contribute to reducing delays at A&E by
reducing demand for hospital services.

e Triangulation was a central part of assessing iCAN outcomes. The process used
both headline level data and a more granular level of detail about the impact of
different workstreams, which was also compared with feedback from patients
about their experience of services.

e |t was understandable that green-rated performance did not seem to be reflected
in perceptions of the situation on the ground at this point. The iCAN programme
had enabled the care system in Northamptonshire to recover some ground but
there was still a long way to go.

e The iCAN programme was not intended to deliver cashable savings. It was
designed to prevent demand from overwhelming the care system.

e The system had performed well to achieve a length of stay reduction of 1.63 days
against the targeted reduction of 0.28 days. However, there was a challenge
resulting from the high starting baseline: before the iCAN programme had started
the average length of stay in Northamptonshire was 9-10 days. Further
improvement was possible. Kettering General Hospital was performing slightly
better than Northampton General Hospital.

o Assessments by the Complex Discharge Hub as well as social care assessments
provided assurance that patients returning to their own homes had the capability
and the appropriate support arrangements to resume independent living.
Monitoring readmissions also helped to identify any causes for concern.
The position on readmissions in Northamptonshire was largely steady, although
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic still needed to be fully understood.

e Complex discharge pathway 1 involved a person returning to their own home with
support. Pathway 2 involved rehabilitation provided in a setting such as a

21
Page 67



community hospital and the use of Discharge to Assess beds. Pathway 3 involved
residential and long term nursing care.

e The position in Northamptonshire concerning the length of time between a person
being medically fit for discharge from hospital and starting their care package in
complex discharge cases was not typical of the national position. The average
figure could disguise significant variances. There was the capacity in
Northamptonshire to maintain inputs and outputs: the challenge was a backlog in
cases. Services had been redesigned to address this, which had led to a short term
loss of capacity for pathway 1 but would ultimately increase capacity by 30% for
no extra cost. This would require 3 months to come into effect.

e Capacity at pathway 2 would be enhanced by work to develop Turn Furlong
Specialist Care Centre in Northampton as an integrated facility, which would
increase throughput.

e Work on complex discharge should bring the average delay down to 3-5 days,
which was more typical of the national position. The national target was only
3 hours, which raised the question of whether this was an appropriate target. The
potential impact of the current economic climate on capacity in the care market
also created risks to the provision of ongoing care as part of pathways 1 and 2.

e The flow and grip pillar of the iCAN programme focussed on addressing issues that
could hold up hospital discharges. Wards and processes had been reviewed to
identify opportunities to improve. There were still issues with discharge at
weekends. Hospitals had used the Patient Time Matters data tracker for the past
6 months to track the cumulative effect of delays. This had contributed to
improving performance.

iCAN Delivery Director

e The iCAN programme was already delivering positive outcomes, in the context of
an ageing local population. These included reducing the average length of stay in
hospital by two days compared to April 2021, which was an impressive
achievement, and producing a benefit of around 40,000 annual bed days. Positive
feedback was also being received from service-users.

e Performance in key areas of work was largely green-rated at the Gateway 4 point
for both trajectories and plans. Areas for improvement were reviewed and
addressed: performance on Northampton General Hospital diagnostics had been
reviewed to identify why targets were not being met, resulting in a
re-baselining whilst retaining the overall aim.

e There had been considerable debate amongst system leaders about why the
current situation on the ground did not feel more different than it was. The
situation reflected current challenges in areas including workforce, GP retention
and increasing demand on Kettering General Hospital to 2024.

e The Patient Advisory Group was currently carrying out a significant piece of work
on patient experience, which could help to identify any issues with discharge
decisions and patients’ ability to return to independent living.

22
Page 68



The discharge planning process should identify if a patient had no family members
nearby or similar support network and arrange for appropriate support. It was not
assumed that a person would have someone to care for them.

The iCAN programme and other Integrated Care Northamptonshire programmes
were now moving towards becoming collaboratives. This was about establishing
specific programmes as permanent ways of working. Developing the iCAN
Collaborative was a complex area of work due to the number of partners and
contracts involved.

The Integrated Care Board (ICB) on 18 August 2022 had considered the case for
change and the outline plan to establish iCAN as a collaborative by April 2023.
The business case had been discussed with a range of partners. Development of
the iCAN Collaborative was now at the stage of securing system agreement to the
case for change and starting to develop shadow governance arrangements and
operational delivery plans. The final stage of the process would involve reaching
any formal collaborative, contractual or delegation agreements required.

A pragmatic approach was being taken to the development of the proposed
operating model and scope of services for the iCAN Collaborative. The services to
be included in the Collaborative would be built up in tranches. The first tranche
would be largely made up of services that were already funded through the Better
Care Fund to provide a good foundation. Development was focussing on shared
points of access, integrated community-based multi-disciplinary teams and
integrated discharge and intermediate care. This would feed into winter and surge
planning and response.

The iCAN Collaborative case for change was focussed on how it would produce
better outcomes for all concerned. Patients would benefit from greater focus on
prevention and on support for independent living, a greater understanding of
alternative options available to them and easier access.

There was currently no intention to TUPE-transfer staff as part of developing the
iCAN Collaborative. The Collaborative was a structure rather than an organisation
to which staff could be transferred.

Development of the iCAN Collaborative would include working through any human
resources aspects involved, supported by appropriate specialist advice.
All collaboratives would need to do this.

There was not a national deadline to set up collaboratives. It was an ambition to
establish the iCAN Collaborative by April 2023.

The ICB would be accountable for the iCAN Collaborative whilst partners would
also still be subject to their own statutory obligations. It would be important to
develop effective governance arrangements for the Collaborative, which would be
assisted by taking a co-production approach.

23
Page 69



Delivery Director Health and Care Integration

e People discharged from hospital should receive a phone call from their GP practice
48 hours afterwards to check their support needs and inform their care plan.
This was a requirement in GP contracts.

e The iCAN Collaborative aimed to bring together staff working on common areas
not to change the organisation employing them. It was anticipated that the initial
basis for joint working would be a memorandum of understanding. There was the
potential for delegation to a lead provider but that had not been discussed yet.

How patients and service users were informing the iCAN programme and how the
programme was affecting their experiences of services

27 April 2022
iCAN Delivery Director

e The 10 principles for how Integrated Care Systems (ICSs) should work with people
and communities formed the basis for the way in which iCAN was operating.
The People Advisory Group (PAG) was being used to provide early engagement.
Co-production was central to iCAN and the PAG and Overview and Scrutiny could
provide constructive challenge on how well the programme was doing on this.
It was also important to ensure that iCAN was a learning programme.

o Neighbourhood and collaborative design was a focus for all ICS workstreams.
The ICS model represented the best opportunity to achieve the long-held aim of
providers working together to deliver seamless services.

Chair, iCAN People Advisory Group

e The iCAN programme involved the highest level of partnership working and
collaboration that he had seen in his own 30 years of experience in relevant fields
in Northamptonshire.

e The People Advisory Group (PAG)’s key focus areas were to provide oversight and
challenge on the iCAN programme and to contribute to co-production. It had a
significant amount of expert knowledge in this regard. The PAG could also carry
out the same functions on other areas of work: for example, it was currently
contributing to work by West Northamptonshire Council and North
Northamptonshire Council on regulated care.

e Service users were giving positive feedback on services introduced as part of the
iCAN programme, including multi-disciplinary crisis response teams and the
countywide befriending service. By the end of 2022 there were due to be four
community asset programmes running in the county supporting people with
different long term conditions.

e The iCAN programme had extra surge funding that was being used on projects to
support pressure in the acute hospitals. Additional staff had been provided in A&E
to identify the best treatment and support options for people. Work was also being

24
Page 70



done to support discharge from hospital by addressing issues that could prevent a
person who was clinically well enough to be discharged from leaving hospital, such
as a need for adaptations to be fitted in their home to enable them to live
independently.

e Councillors should be assured that the iCAN programme involved good initiatives
that were making a difference in practice, although there remained much more to
do. Councillors could help to inform future work and to suggest potential priorities
within this. The PAG had already highlighted end-of-life care as an area that
needed attention in Northamptonshire, to improve the consistency of care and the
outcomes that were achieved.

e The iCAN programme involved scaling up the provision of remote monitoring
equipment in Northamptonshire.

e Northamptonshire needed to have a plan to get sufficient carers to meet local
needs. 10 per cent of the population of Northamptonshire were carers. The PAG
could contribute to any work by local authorities on this matter.

e |t was important to invest in community-based solutions to healthcare needs: not
doing so was a false economy. Care planning and patient handovers did not
represent significant costs but would have an impact if not done effectively.
Helping patients in hospital to eat was a role that could be done by local
volunteers, provided that the need for it was identified and supported.

Alan Christie, iCAN People Advisory Group member

e He was the full-time carer for his wife who had multiple sclerosis. They had
benefitted from having a monitor at home that measured his wife’s blood
pressure, temperature and oxygenation level. When difficulties occurred Mr
Christie could pass on this information to help medical professionals to decide
what intervention was required.

e He had been able to monitor his wife’s breathing when she had caught COVID-19,
which had meant she had not needed to be admitted to hospital.

e A monitor cost around £60.00 and was literally a life-saver, as well as reducing the
need for hospital admissions.

e The last time his wife was admitted to hospital he had arranged for her carers to
go in to help care for and feed her. This had helped to maintain the continuity of
her care.

e Hospitals were better at treating patients than at caring for them. He had seen
cases of patients who were not able to feed themselves being left with a meal.

Sheila White, iCAN People Advisory Group member

e Her main concern in relation to local health services was the different levels of
access currently offered by GPs. A consistent approach across all surgeries would
help members of the public.

25
Page 71



e Communication was key to effective service delivery. There was a difference
between offering a consistent level of service to all and ensuring that people were
aware of the services available to them.

Julie Thew, iCAN People Advisory Group member

e She was a carer for two adults who lived at different addresses. Carers played a
key role in the health and social care system but were not given much attention
when the question of what good care looked like was being considered.

o TheiCAN programme aims of enabling people to remain in, or return to, their own
homes rather than staying in hospital would be affected if carers were not
available.

8 July 2022
Chair, iCAN People Advisory Group

e The PAG was intended to promote co-production and work being done through
iCAN in which it was involved was receiving good feedback from patients and
carers. The PAG also contributed to wider areas of work such as a bid for
community diagnostic centres in Northamptonshire.

e Key messages resulting from PAG meetings were shared with the senior leadership
of the iCAN programme.

e A considerable amount of case study work was done on successful outcomes and
lessons that could be learnt from experience.

e The PAG was seen as an example of good practice operating in Northamptonshire.

How the iCAN programme might affect, or be affected by, the provision of
emergency first response in West Northamptonshire.

8 July 2022
Divisional Director Northamptonshire, East Midlands Ambulance Service

e East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS) received 490 calls per day in
Northamptonshire. An ambulance did not need to be sent to 50-60% of the total
calls received.

e EMAS had 450 staff based in Northamptonshire, an increase of 30% in the past
3 years, and 8 ambulance stations.

e From 17 to 42 double-crewed ambulances were sent out each day.

e The COVID-19 pandemic had produced unprecedented demands on capacity. The
number of category 1 ambulance calls, involving an immediate response to a life-
threatening condition, had increased by 27% in the second lockdown. This was a
whole-system issue. Extra resources provided by the government were not
sufficient to counterbalance increased demand.

26
Page 72



e Northamptonshire was in a better position than other parts of the East Midlands
in terms of hours lost by EMAS waiting at hospitals. There had recently been
30 ambulances waiting for 7-8 hours at a hospital in Leicester and a similar
situation in  north Lincolnshire. When delays were experienced in
Northamptonshire partners were able to work together to get things moving
again.

e Northamptonshire was the smallest of EMAS’s divisions and performed the best
on non-conveyance.

Head of Operations, East Midlands Ambulance Service

e The patients seen by EMAS were more poorly than in the past.

e EMAS had a non-conveyance rate of 50-60%. In these cases, patients were passed
to the clinical assessment team and given advice over the phone, given advice in-
person by EMAS personnel, or transported to a non-acute location to receive help.

e Current attendances were down 10% compared to the previous year. This
reflected the Hear and Treat and See and Treat model, which involved dealing with
more cases on the phone and at the scene where possible.

e Delays handing over patients at hospitals affected EMAS’s ability to respond to
demand. It worked with acute trusts to manage this issue as far as possible. EMAS
lost 16,000 hours waiting at hospitals, including 1,178 hours in Northamptonshire.
When there were delays in handover EMAS worked with acute trusts to maintain
the minimum care standards for patients. This could involve hospital staff going
out to treat patients waiting in ambulances. Rapid handover bed could be needed
to release ambulances.

Divisional Senior Manager for Quality, East Midlands Ambulance Service

e EMAS had a system in place to manage the risk of harm to critically ill patients from
delays. This made provision for staff on the scene to report back that a delay
should be reviewed if it would cause potential harm to the patient. The NHS
commissioner carried out harm reviews of selected cases involving a delayed
response as part of quality control mechanisms. Members of the public could give
feedback about services through the Patient Advice and Liaison Service. EMAS had
a robust overall approach.

e In his experience in his current post since August 2021 the iCAN programme had
been very productive. Good progress had been made with frailty support. The new
operating model for adult social care in Northamptonshire was embedded and
there was not a risk of reverting to old approaches.

e There was a consistent approach across Northamptonshire to the provision of
same day emergency care (SDEC), which involved medical care being provided to
patients who would otherwise need to be admitted to hospital. Kettering General
Hospital and Northampton General Hospital had been operating SDEC for several
years. EMAS crews’ knowledge of it had been increased over the past 9 months.
Direct pathways were also now available for patients including those with cardiac
and stroke conditions.

27
Page 73



Work on falls prevention would help to reduce ambulance call-outs. The approach
to falls now looked at different options for care to meet a patient’s needs. For
example, a person who had had a single fall might be better served by receiving
orthopaedic treatment rather than needing to attend A&E.

The yellow bracelet scheme — a bracelet containing a patient’s medical records,
which could be scanned by medical personnel —and EMAS crews being able to use
tablets to access medical records remotely supported a more effective response.

Kettering General Hospital already had a frailty unit and Northampton General
Hospital was just developing one. EMAS did not currently have direct access to
frailty units but had a contact in each unit. This meant that a frail patient taken to
A&E could be collected from there by staff from the unit rather than waiting in
A&E, which could have a negative effect.

A new assessment process had been set up for patients who had experienced a
minor fall. A nurse in the EMAS control room could assess these patients, enabling
them to be passed directly to iCAN and support put in place from the Intermediate
Care Team (ICT). This approach was diverting 1-2 patients per day from needing to
be taken to hospital.

There was now provision for patients needing same day surgical care to be taken
directly to the relevant surgical unit for issues such as abdominal pain. Work was
also being done on community solutions for urology and catheter issues, which
would reduce demand on both EMAS and A&E.

National guidance on SDEC produced by NHS England was used as the basis for
triage decisions. The paramedic attending a call and the SDEC divisional leader
would make a joint decision about where to take a patient. There was confidence
in the process used.

28
Page 74



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Key Findings, Conclusions and Recommendations

After all of the evidence was collated the Task and Finish Panel reached the
conclusions set out in this section of the report.

Focus of the iCAN programme

The Task and Finish Panel recognised that the iCAN programme was set up to focus on
improving support for a specific group of people in the local population — frail adults
over 65 years of age — in order both to improve their health outcomes and to make
better use of available resources and reduce demand on acute care in
Northamptonshire. At the same time, the Panel wishes to make the point that more
general work on frailty should not be linked solely to age. A person’s physical condition
is not determined solely by their age: many people over 65 years of age are not frail
and some people affected by frailty are below this age. The Panel encourages that this
principle is taken into account appropriately in the development of future support for
people in West Northamptonshire who are living with frailty, building on the iCAN
programme.

The Task and Finish Panel considered that focussing the iCAN programme on the two
acute hospitals in Northamptonshire, although logical geographically, could risk
people living near to the borders of the county being disadvantaged in relation to the
standard of care available to them. The Panel noted, for example, that residents of
South Northamptonshire are likely to access acute care in Oxfordshire, rather than at
Northampton or Kettering general hospitals. People living in this area who are in the
target group for the iCAN programme therefore may not benefit from it, as well as
potentially being affected by other issues relating to joined-up working or
information-sharing that might result from receiving acute care from a different
integrated care system. The Panel encourages that moving forward the iCAN
programme and any related work that succeeds it should be focussed as far as possible
on people (the services available to residents of Northamptonshire) rather than on
place (the locations from which services are delivered).

Thirdly, the Task and Finish Panel commented that services intended to enable frail
older people to remain living independently and to enable a more focussed use of
acute care should ideally operate for 24 hours a day on 7 days a week. The Panel
highlighted that people concerned about retaining their independence and their
dignity could continue to live at home in difficulty until they reached a crisis point,
which would not necessarily occur during business hours. If alternative provision was
not available at this point they would come into acute care. The Panel therefore
encourages that business cases for future services arising from the iCAN programme
should be based on the principle that all services should be available 24/7.

Lastly, the Task and Finish Panel wishes to highlight that future development of iCAN
support must be effectively linked in to the work of the nine new Local Area
Partnerships (LAPs) to be established in West Northamptonshire. This should logically
occur: iCAN is one of the priority areas in the Integrated Care Northamptonshire
Strategy 2023 — 2033; the LAPs are an intrinsic part of the integrated care system

29

Page 75



7.6

7.7

structure that are intended to translate strategy into local action. The Panel recognises
that the LAPs were not in place when the original iCAN programme was developed
and implemented. The Panel therefore sees a benefit in reinforcing that this important
connection must be made effectively.

Recommendations:

A) The Cabinet to agree that the development of future support for people living with
frailty in West Northamptonshire should not link frailty solely to age and should
include appropriate provision for affected people below 65 years of age.

B) The Cabinet to agree that the development of any future services supporting
independent living for frail older people in West Northamptonshire following on
from the iCAN programme should include provision for residents living near the
borders of Northamptonshire who are likely to be treated at hospitals in
neighbouring areas.

C) The Cabinet to agree that business cases for any future services supporting
independent living for frail older people in West Northamptonshire following on
from the iCAN programme should be based on the principle that services are
capable of being deployed at any time during the day and week.

D) The Cabinet to agree that a feature of the development of new Local Area
Partnerships in West Northamptonshire should be to look at how they link in with
iCAN programme initiatives.

Outcomes delivered by the iCAN programme

The Task and Finish Panel welcomed examples of work under the iCAN programme
having a positive impact on services that it was able to see as the scrutiny review
progressed. In January 2022 the Panel noted that staff training at Kettering General
Hospital had reduced the time taken to complete pre-discharge needs assessments of
patients: the Panel considered that this was exactly the type of outcome that the
programme should produce. In April 2022 the Panel was advised that front door trial
projects at the two acute hospitals had enabled frailty teams to double the daily
average number of patients seen. In September 2022 the Panel was advised that the
average length of stay in hospital for people in the scope of the iCAN programme had
been reduced by 1.63 days compared to April 2021, which was also producing a
benefit of around 40,000 annual bed days across both acute hospitals. The Panel also
noted that service-users were giving positive feedback about the practical difference
being made by iCAN programme initiatives.

The challenge that the Task and Finish Panel experienced during the scrutiny review
was gaining a clear picture of sustained positive outcomes from the iCAN programme
in return for the resources committed to it, including the cost of the external system
transformation partner Newton Europe. In part this reflected significant changes to
the operating context for the programme during its implementation. It was
highlighted to the Panel that the COVID-19 pandemic had occurred between the
design and delivery of the programme and that the impact of the pandemic needed
to be taken into account in assessing the outcomes being delivered by the programme.

30

Page 76



The Panel was advised in April 2022 that the acute care system was at that point
outperforming the targets set in the original iCAN business case for attendances,
admissions, length of stay and bed days and, overall, the number of acute care beds
being used by non-elective patients over 65 years of age had fallen below the 2019
baseline. The Panel was advised that changes to ways of working made under the
programme were contributing to this position but it had also been affected by the
pandemic. The Panel subsequently heard in September 2022 that the acute care
system in Northamptonshire was operating with fewer overall beds than anticipated
when the programme had commenced, due to the pandemic and other factors, and
that bed days being saved by the programme were covering this reduction. Therefore,
the Panel could not accept there was clear evidence of sustained and
positive outcomes.

7.8 The Task and Finish Panel was advised that the level of challenge faced by the acute
care sector after the start of the iCAN programme had led to the need to increase its
focus on contributing to system pressures in the immediate future rather than over
the next five years. The context for the programme had also been changed with the
publication of Census 2021 information in June 2022, which showed a large increase
in the number of people over 65 years of age in Northamptonshire with the number
of people of 70 years of age showing the most significant increase and going up faster
than had been projected in the original iCAN business case.

7.9 The Task and Finish Panel raised the need for demographic projections informing the
iCAN programme to be reviewed in order to identify whether the latest census data
would affect the resources required for the programme and the savings it will deliver.
The Panel makes the same point to West Northamptonshire Council in relation to any
further phase of work carrying on from the original iCAN programme.

7.10 In addition, the Panel emphasises that assessment of the outcomes produced by iCAN
initiatives must look at the patient experience behind improved headline-level
performance. The Panel stated during the scrutiny review that performance on acute
care bed occupancy and length of stay needed to be judged in the full context.
A reduction in the number of people over 65 years of age attending hospital during
the past year could be due to a range of factors in addition to the effect of iCAN.
In turn, it would not be a positive outcome if vulnerable people were being discharged
too soon. The Panel sought reassurance that discharge decisions were not based on
an assumption that everyone had support in place to enable them to live
independently. Decisions also needed to take account of ‘human factors’: some
people at the point of being discharged from hospital could be too proud to say that
they needed help or could just want to get back to their own homes. The Panel
encouraged that, as far as possible, patients, families and carers should be involved in
producing a patient’s post-discharge care plan and be informed about, and have
confidence in, what would happen to the patient after they were discharged from
acute care. There should also be an appropriate handover to any new organisation
that would be providing care to a patient after they were discharged.

7.11 On a point related to care after discharge, the Task and Finish Panel was advised that
people discharged from hospital should receive a phone call from their GP practice 48

31
Page 77



hours afterwards to check their support needs and inform their care plan, which was
a requirement in GP contracts. The Panel raised the need to check how consistently
GPs in West Northamptonshire were meeting this requirement. Anecdotal
information suggested this was not the case. The Panel also highlights the importance
of monitoring the number of frail older people re-admitted to hospital and of including
this as a measure when judging the effectiveness of the original iCAN programme and
any further phase of work that builds on it.

Recommendations:

E) The Cabinet to agree to a review of demographic projections informing the
development of any future services supporting independent living for frail older
people in West Northamptonshire following on from the iCAN programme, in
order to identify the effect of any differences between previous projections and
actual Census 2021 information.

F) The Cabinet to agree that the development of any future services supporting
independent living for frail older people in West Northamptonshire following on
from the iCAN programme should ensure that actions to improve headline
performance on length of stay in acute care do not result in worse outcomes for
patients in practice.

G) The Cabinet to agree to seek confirmation from the appropriate authority that GP
practices in West Northamptonshire are consistently contacting patients
discharged from hospital within 48 hours as required by GP contracts and that
action to reinforce compliance is taken where necessary.

H) The Cabinet to agree that re-admissions of frail older people to acute care should
be included in data used to judge the effectiveness of the original iCAN programme
and any future services supporting independent living for frail older people in
West Northamptonshire following on from it.

Development of an iCAN collaborative

7.12 The Task and Finish Panel was given an overview in September 2022 of plans to
develop iCAN using the ‘collaborative’ organisational model, as was the case for work
in all four of Integrated Care Northamptonshire’s priority areas. The collaborative
model provides a legal framework for relevant organisations to work together in
partnership to plan and deliver local services. The proposed establishment of
collaboratives reflected the need to establish distinct programmes as permanent ways
of working, to secure benefits achieved so far and develop a service delivery model
that created the conditions for integrated working in the long term. The Panel was
advised that the iCAN collaborative would be a structure to bring together staff
working on common areas not an employing organisation. It was anticipated that the
initial basis for joint working would be a memorandum of understanding, with the
potential for delegation to a lead provider in future. The Panel considered that the
joined up approach reflected in the iCAN collaborative was positive but emphasised
that it should not result in reduced accountability, which could increase the risk of
service delivery slipping or partnerships not operating affectively.

32
Page 78



Recommendations:

I) The Cabinet to agree that the development of the iCAN Collaborative should
ensure that the new organisational model does not lead to reduced accountability
for the effectiveness of the services involved.

iCAN and emergency medical response

7.13 The Task and Finish Panel recognised that the iCAN programme itself is not directly
concerned with the emergency medical response element of the health system. At the
same time, the Panel considered that it was valid to look at links between the two
areas: part of the purpose of the iCAN programme was to manage the level of pressure
on acute care in the county; one of the effects of this pressure could be to increase
handover times for ambulances at acute hospitals, with consequent effects on
emergency response capacity. The Panel was reassured to hear that
Northamptonshire was in a better position than other parts of the East Midlands in
terms of time spent by East Midlands Ambulance Service personnel waiting to hand
over patients at the two acute hospitals in the county. The Panel also noted however
this still left many patients in difficult positions and was far from perfect. The Panel
welcomed feedback on the positive impact of particular initiatives that broadened the
way in which emergency care could be provided or that supported independent living
for frail older people, including work being done under the iCAN programme.
The Panel therefore considered that taking a wider view helped to inform its
understanding of the benefits that iCAN could produce.

7.14 When the Task and Finish Panel sought to consider the relationship between support
for independent living and emergency medical response needs it touched on the
contribution of community first responders: volunteers who are trained to attend
certain types of emergency calls in their local areas to provide care before the arrival
of more highly skilled medical professionals. The Panel noted the obvious benefit
produced by community first responder schemes, particularly in rural areas where an
ambulance may take longer to arrive. As a small practical outcome from this scrutiny
review the Panel proposes that it would be beneficial for all councillors to be provided
with more information about schemes operating in their local areas, to inform them
about a source of support for members of the community and, potentially, to enable
them to encourage involvement in these schemes.

Recommendations:

J) The Cabinet to agree that West Northamptonshire Council should arrange for all
councillors to be provided with information about local community first responder
schemes in their respective Local Area Partnership areas.

Conclusion of the scrutiny review

7.15 The Task and Finish Panel wishes to highlight that it has not been able to bring its
work to as neat a conclusion as was set out in its original scope. After the Panel’s last
meeting in September 2022 a further meeting was scheduled in December 2022 but
had to be postponed for practical reasons. Efforts were then made to schedule

33
Page 79



another Panel meeting in Spring 2023, before the Chair was advised that the
programme had changed to a local authority-based delivery model, with a new lead
officer. The Panel would have benefited from better communication about this
situation, which contributed to producing a gap in its work and questions that it was
still seeking to resolve about the outcomes delivered by the iCAN programme. Specific
guestions were outstanding around the cost of the programme to the Council so far
and information on how the reported improvements had equated into financial
savings as projected by the original reports. Given the changes affecting the subject of
the scrutiny review, as well as recent changes to the operation of the Council’s
Overview and Scrutiny Function, the Chair took the view that it was most appropriate
for the Panel to report back to the Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny on
the work it had completed and also enable the Committee to decide how it wished to
proceed further on this topic. However, the Panel raises the need for that Committee
to seek a clearer picture than it has been able to obtain so far of the benefits generated
by the iCAN programme in return for the resources committed to it by West
Northamptonshire Council and in turn how these have benefitted residents and
supported the live your best life priority.

Recommendations:

K) The Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to agree to request

a report to a future meeting confirming:

e The total financial cost to West Northamptonshire Council of the iCAN
programme to the end of 2022/23, including the cost of the system
transformation partner

e The positive outcomes directly resulting from the iCAN programme delivered
to the end of 2022/23.

Assessing the impact of the scrutiny review

7.16 It is good practice for Overview and Scrutiny to revisit issues that have been the
subject of in-depth work, to assess how its recommendations have been implemented
and what have outcomes they have produced.

Recommendations:

L) The Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to agree to review
the impact of the scrutiny review six months after the presentation of the final
report to decision-makers.

34
Page 80



Appendix A

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

TASK AND FINISH SCRUTINY REVIEW - SCOPE

1. Topic
Integrated Care across Northamptonshire (iCAN)
2. Responsible Overview and Scrutiny Committee
People Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC)
3. Purpose of the scrutiny review

To scrutinise the delivery of intended outcomes from the iCAN programme at key points
during the period of the programme contract. iCAN is a joint health and social care
transformation programme intended to produce benefits in terms of improved outcomes
for residents, reduced operating costs and less reliance on acute hospital care through
increased focus on community-based care, prevention and joint working within the
care system.

4. Key lines of enquiry

e Can Overview and Scrutiny take confidence that the iCAN programme is delivering the
outcomes that it is intended to achieve? iCAN is intended both to improve the
experience that people have of health and social care in West Northamptonshire and
also to deliver financial savings in the local health and social care system.

e How is the overall assessment of progress made by the iCAN programme reflected in
the lived experience of service users and staff members?

5. Outcomes

To gain assurance about the outcomes being delivered by the iCAN programme and, if
necessary, to make evidence-based recommendations to the West Northamptonshire
Council Cabinet intended to assist in addressing any risks or areas of concern that may be
identified.

6. Approach

Scrutiny will be carried out by a task and finish panel made up of the following councillors:
1. Councillor Emma Roberts (Chair)

2. Councillor Janice Duffy

3. Councillor Andre Gonzalez De Savage

4. Councillor Rosie Herring

35
Page 81



5. Councillor Rosie Humphreys

6. Councillor Wendy Randall

7. Councillor Sue Sharps

The panel will meet with identified expert advisors periodically whilst the iCAN programme

is in operation to get an overview of progress with the delivery of programme outcomes,
any issues affecting planned delivery and how these are being mitigated.

Panel meetings will generally take place remotely, with the option of the final meeting
being held in-person. Panel meetings may be held either during the day or in the evening
to suit need.

7. Information required

Progress updates on iCAN programme delivery, supported by input from the following
expert advisors:

e iCAN programme team representative(s)

e Executive Director of Adults, Communities and Wellbeing or specific service
representative

e Newton Europe representative(s) — system transformation partner

Feedback from staff engagement activity carried out as part of iCAN programme
implementation.

Information on service-users’ experience of the outcomes delivered by the iCAN
programme, from the following sources:

e Feedback obtained from the iCAN People Advisory Group and/or from stakeholder
groups supporting the co-production element of the iCAN programme led by the
Deputy Chief Executive of Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust as
iCAN Deputy Senior Responsible Officer.

e Direct input from invited service users if suitable information is not available from
other existing sources.

8. Resources and support

e Democratic Services officer support for panel meetings and for production of any
report or recommendations that may result.

9. Timetable and key dates

The timing of panel meetings will be aligned to remaining iCAN contract gateway review
points, which are as follows:

Stage Gate 3 March 2022
Stage Gate 4 June 2022
36

Page 82



Stage Gate 5 September 2022
Stage Gate 6 December 2022
Contract Completion Gateway March 2023

The People OSC may also wish to consider scheduling an agenda item on progress with the
iCAN programme at one of its meetings at the mid-point of the contract, to enable public

scrutiny of the ‘mid-term’ position informed by the panel’s work.

10. Follow-up

The People OSC may consider the need for any further scrutiny activity on this topic
following the completion of the panel’s work as part of regular oversight of the People

0OSC’s work programme.

37

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Review Proposal — Form A

Agenda Item 10

This form should be completed by sponsoring member(s) or officers when proposing an item
for consideration with the work programme of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The
relevant Overview and Scrutiny committee reserves the right to reject suggestions or suggest
alternative means for resolving the issues raised.

Cllr Rosie Herring, after
referral by Council of a
motion presented to the
meeting on 29 June 2023

Proposer’s
Name and Title

Date 13 September 2023

Proposed Topic Title

Support for unpaid carers in West
Northamptonshire

Background and reason for including the
item in the Committee’s work programme

Millions of people in the United Kingdom
care for loved ones, providing a range of
support to people who can’t care for
themselves or who need help to live
independently. The developing West
Northamptonshire Health and Wellbeing
Strategy identifies that over 9,000 people
provide more than 50hrs unpaid care per
week in the authority. Providing unpaid
care can have a detrimental impact on
carers’ own health and wellbeing and
carers can find it difficult to balance caring
responsibilities with other parts of their
lives. Scrutiny of this topic is intended to
help to understand the situation of unpaid
carers in West Northamptonshire and to
identify whether more should be done to
recognise and support them. In turn, this
will help to maintain the contribution that
unpaid carers make to managing overall
demand on health and social care services.

This proposal is for scrutiny of support for
adult unpaid carers. It is recognised that
young people can also be unpaid carers.
Scrutiny of support for unpaid carers of all
ages would be a broader piece of work that
would also concern both the Adult Social
Care and Health and the Children,
Education and Housing Overview and
Scrutiny committees.

Page 85



Link to the Council’s Corporate Priorities

The proposed scrutiny review is intended to
support the Council’s vision to make West
Northamptonshire a place where people
are supported to live independent, self-
sufficient lives and where everyone has the
best life chances. The proposed scrutiny
review relates to the Council’s corporate
priority to support adults in West
Northamptonshire to live independent and
self-sufficient lives for as long as possible.
Where they are vulnerable or lack a
support network the Council will provide
the support they need. The Council will
work with health in more integrated ways
ensuring our residents can “chose well, stay
well and live well.”

Key Objectives

The scrutiny review will consider and
provide constructive challenge on the
following matters:

e West Northamptonshire Council’s
preparedness to meet additional
requirements relating to support for
employees with caring responsibilities
introduced by the Carers Leave Act
2023, which will take effect in 2024.

o The effectiveness of the support for
unpaid carers provided by West
Northamptonshire Council as part of its
statutory responsibilities for adult social
care.

e The development of a new West
Northamptonshire Council Carers
Strategy during 2023/24.

The scrutiny review will seek to understand
where existing services work well and
where plans for the future appear robust.

It will seek to identify where there are
areas for improvement and make evidence-
based recommendations intended to
address these.

Page 86




Measure of effectiveness

The scrutiny review results in the Adult
Social Care and Health Overview and
Scrutiny Committee making practical,
timely recommendations intended to
enhance the support provided to unpaid
carers in West Northamptonshire, which
are presented to the Cabinet and/or other
responsible decision-makers for
consideration.

Spotlight or full review

Full

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



West Northamptonshire Council

Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee — Work Programme 2023/24

Topic

Proposed purpose

Date

Approach

Cabinet Member /
Executive Director / other
senior leader

Comments

Integrated care across
Northamptonshire (iCAN)
— supporting independent
living for frail older
people

The Committee to consider:

a) An update from the Task
and Finish Panel formed to
scrutinise progress with
the iCAN programme

b) Future direction of iCAN

27 June 2023

Committee meeting item

Assistant Director
Commissioning and
Performance

Cabinet Member for
Adult Care, Wellbeing and
Health Integration

The scrutiny work was carried
out in 2022 under the former
People Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

Care Quality Commission
inspection of adult social
care — preparation

The Committee to provide
scrutiny input and constructive
challenge regarding West
Northamptonshire Council’s
self-assessment for the CQC
inspection.

27 June 2023

Committee meeting item

Assistant Director
Safeguarding and
Wellbeing Services
Cabinet Member for
Adult Care, Wellbeing and
Health Integration

Healthwatch West
Northamptonshire
Annual Report 2022/23

The Committee to consider
the Annual Report to identify
any topics for scrutiny that it
may suggest.

6 December 2023

Agenda planning
meeting

NA

Performance against
adult care, public health

The Committee to scrutinise
and provide constructive

24 July 2023 pre-meeting

Preliminary discussion at
a pre-meeting to inform

Executive Director People
Services

and wellbeing key challenge regarding West 14 September 2023 potential regular Cabinet Member for
performance indicators Northamptonshire Council’s 17 January 2024 Committee meeting item | Adult Care, Wellbeing and
performance against KPIs for 17 April 2024 Health Integration
services within its remit. >
«Q
D
Integrated care across The Committee to consider 14 September 2023 Committee meeting item | NA The scrutiny work was carrﬁd

Nortiwamptonshire (iCAN)
scrugy review final draft

and approve the draft report
from the iCAN task and finish
panel.

out in 2022 under the formﬁr
People Overview and Scrutfgy
Committee. 3

repapd.
O

=
| —




Topic Proposed purpose Date Approach Cabinet Member / Comments
Executive Director / other
senior leader

Development and The Committee to scrutinise 14 September 2023 Regular Committee Executive Director People

operation of Local Area continuing progress with the 17 January 2024 meeting item Services

Partnerships in West development of LAPs, 17 April 2024 Cabinet Member for

Northamptonshire involvement in their work and Adult Care, Wellbeing and

the outcomes produced. Health Integration
Unpaid Carers and how Following a motion at Council, | 14 September 2023 Preliminary discussion at | Executive Director People

WNC supports carers and
assist with development
of Carers strategy.

the committee have decided a
potential task and finish group
to review unpaid carers in light
of the new legislation and how
WNC supports carers and how
scrutiny can assist with the
development of the Carers
strategy.

agenda planning
meeting and potential
task and finish group.

Services

Cabinet Member for
Adult Care, Wellbeing and
Health Integration

Care quality in care
homes

The Committee to provide
constructive challenge
regarding action by West
Northamptonshire Council to
support and improve care
quality in local residential care
and nursing homes for older
people.

To be confirmed

Preliminary discussion at
a pre-meeting to inform
potential Committee
meeting item.

Executive Director People
Services

Cabinet Member for
Adult Care, Wellbeing and
Health Integration

Care Quality Commission
inspection of adult social
care — outcomes

T

The Committee to provide
scrutiny input and constructive
challenge regarding West
Northamptonshire Council’s
action plan to address the
outcomes of the CQC
inspection.

14 September 2023

Committee meeting item

Executive Director People
Services and Adult Social
Care Assistant Directors
Cabinet Member for
Adult Care, Wellbeing and
Health Integration

Dehénd Money Advice
Tran®&ormation Project

The Committee to provide
scrutiny input into the

To be confirmed

Committee meeting item

Assistant Director
Revenues and Benefits

The People Overview and
Scrutiny Committee agreed at

<)
(=)




development and delivery of
the transformation project.

its meeting on 21 February
2023 to request that more
detailed plans for the future
Debt and Money Advice
service to be developed be
presented to the Committee
at an appropriate future
meeting.

Individual debt and West
Northamptonshire
Council’s approach to
debt recovery

The Committee to consider an
overview of issues relating to
individual debt in West
Northamptonshire and the
Council’s approach to debt
recovery.

To be confirmed — ideally
scheduled for the same
meeting as scrutiny of the
Debt and Money Advice
Transformation Project

Committee meeting item

Assistant Director
Revenues and Benefits

The People Overview and
Scrutiny Committee agreed at
its meeting on 21 February
2023 to add this topic to its
work programme.

Supporting independent
living for older people

The Committee to scrutinise
the support provided for
independent living by older
people in West
Northamptonshire following
on from the original iCAN
programme.

To be confirmed

Committee meeting item

Executive Director People
Services

Cabinet Member for
Adult Care, Wellbeing and
Health Integration

Adult care, public health
and wellbeing operating
environment

Committee members to
receive an overview of West
Northamptonshire Council’s
duties, strategic priorities and
challenges relating to the
provision of adult care, public
health and wellbeing services.

To be confirmed — as soon
as possible

Briefing session

Executive Director People
Services

This session is intended to
assist all members of the new
Committee to carry out
informed scrutiny of issues
within its remit.

o
Fortﬁoming service The Committee to be advised Pre-meetings Standing item at pre- Executive Director People
contiBicts of any opportunities to 24 July 2023 meetings Services

©

[ —




provide scrutiny input in 6 December 2023
developing the requirements 6 March 2024

for significant service

contracts relating to its remit.

Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting dates in 2023/24

Pre-meeting Committee meeting
23 May 2023 27 June 2023

24 July 2023 14 September 2023
6 December 2023 17 January 2024

6 March 2024 17 April 2024

26 obed



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Step-up and step-down community transformation
	Slide 1: Step-up and step-down community transformation
	Slide 2: Our shared challenge
	Slide 3: Resolving our shared challenge
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: In 2025 I will have
	Slide 6: The success from Turn Furlong shows the benefits achieved from an integrated Health and Social Care approach
	Slide 7: Our shared transformation in 2022/2023
	Slide 8: Transformation 2023/2024
	Slide 9: Next Steps
	Slide 10: Conclusion

	6 Performance against adult care, public health, and wellbeing key performance indicators
	7 CQC Outcomes and update from Quality & Contacts team on care homes
	Care Home Scrutiny Report

	9 Report from the former People Overview and Scrutiny Committee Review of Integrated Care across Northamptonshire (iCAN)
	10 Proposal for a task and finish group on Unpaid Carers and how WNC supports carers and assist with development of Carers Strategy
	11 Review of Committee Work Programme

